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Globally, drug-resistant infections have been recognised and acknowledged as a clear and present
danger. The U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) estimated that antibiotic
resistance is responsible for more than 2 million infections and 23,000 deaths each year in the
United States, at a direct cost of $20 billion and additional productivity losses of $35 billion
(CDC 2013). In Europe, an estimated 25,000 deaths are attributable to antibiotic-resistant
infections, costing €1.5 billion annually in direct and indirect costs (EMA and ECDC 2009). The
worldwide estimates of global antibiotic resistance, published by the World Health Organisation
(WHO) in 2014, list Escherichia coli, Klebsiella pneumoniae, and Staphylococcus aureus as the three
agents of greatest concern, associated with both hospital and community-acquired infections.
The current global concern and efforts to survive the ‘post-antibiotic era’ vindicates Wockhardt’s
research focus on the anti-infectives space over two decades ago. While other global drug
manufacturers at that time displayed waning interest in antibiotics, intuition and a competitive
analysis of potential market dynamics was reason enough for Wockhardt to create a conceptual
framework to focus on antibiotics. And two decades of unwavering focus and diligence has
come to fruition.
Today, Wockhardt Bio AG has the unique distinction of being the only pharmaceutical company in
the world to have 5 of its new drugs under development accorded the coveted Qualified Infectious
Disease Product (QIDP) status from US FDA.
Considering our corporate credo and given our strong focus and heavy investment on R&D, it is only
fitting to say that when Research Wins, Life Wins.

Antimicrobial Resistance (AMR) – A global crisis
The Review on AMR, published in May, 2016, cites a current average of 700,000 deaths attributable to AMR every year and
estimates that by 2050, 10 million lives every year, and a cumulative USD 100 trillion of economic output will be at risk due to
the rise of drug-resistant infections.
The U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has identified and classified several ‘Urgent’, ‘Serious’ and
‘Concerning’ resistance threats that require focus and attention. They include Carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriaceae
(CRE), Multi drug-resistant Acinobacter, Extended Spectrum ß-lactamase producing Enterobacteriaceae (ESBLs),
Vancomycin-resistant Enterococcus (VRE), Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA), Vancomycin-resistant
Staphylococcus aureus (VRSA) etc.

Deaths attributable to AMR every year
AMR in 2050
10 million
Tetanus
60 000

Road traffic
accidents
1.2 million

Cancer
8.2 million
AMR now
700 000
(low estimate)
Cholera
100 000120 000

Measles
130 000

Diarrhoeal
disease
1.4 million

Diabetes
1.5 million

Source: The Review on Antimicrobial Resistance: Jim O'Neill, 2016
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Wockhardt Bio AG’s New Drug Discoveries to counter AMR
Wockhardt Bio AG’s New Drug Discovery Programme has focused on novel solutions to these very threats for over two
decades and has achieved significant successes to fulfill unmet medical needs. Assigned International Nonproprietary
Names (INN) by the World Health Organisation, Wockhardt Bio AG has 5 new drugs, accorded Qualified Infectious Disease
Product (QIDP) status by US FDA, in various stages of development.
WCK 5222 is a life-saving combination of Cefepime and Zidebactam (INN for WCK 5107) for MDR blood, lung and urinary
tract infections not treatable with most available therapies.
Levonadifloxacin (INN for WCK 771) and Alalevonadifloxacin (INN for WCK 2349) are broader spectrum bactericidal
anti-MRSA drugs.
Nafithromycin (INN for WCK 4873) is being developed for community-origin pneumonia, as well as for the treatment of
upper respiratory tract infections such as bronchitis and pharyngitis.
WCK 4282 is a combination of Cefepime and Tazobactam which leads to coverage of Multidrug Resistant (MDR) gram
negative infections caused by E.coli, Klebsiella and Enterobacter infections in hospital settings.
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long and consistent R&D focus by our New Drug Discovery
Programme on antibiotics. Given the global concern over
drug-resistant infections, our early focus and recent
achievements translate into a tremendous opportunity in
the near future.
At Wockhardt Bio AG, we have always believed that R&D
is the key to the future. Naturally, we continue to
increase our industry-leading investment in R&D as
a percentage of total revenue every year, reaching
USD 56.84 million in FY 2015-16.

Performance that Wins

CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT
My Dear Shareowners
Last year, we adopted Life Wins as the
underlying philosophy and driving principle of

Compliance that Wins

everything that we do at Wockhardt Bio AG. As

“The only way around is through.” Simple and practical
words of wisdom by American poet Robert Frost reflect our
approach to regulatory compliance. We have invested
significant resources to deploy people, processes and
technology to ensure regulatory compliance and I am
happy to announce steady progress on that front.
During the year, Wockhardt Bio AG’s parent company,
Wock hardt Limited’s manufac turing facilit y at
L1-Chikalthana, Aurangabad, was inspected by UK MHRA
and they have confirmed the closure of the inspection and
issued an unrestricted GMP certificate. Accordingly,
supplies have been resumed from L1 facility to UK Market.
US FDA has also recently completed inspections of
Wockhardt Limited’s manufacturing units at Ankleshwar,
Gujarat, and Shendra, Aurangabad, and made some
observations. They have been responded to. The Shendra
manufacturing unit is a new facility supplying to India, UK &
Irish markets. Currently, Wockhardt Bio AG is not supplying
any product from the Shendra facility to the US market. Also,
Wockhardt Limited’s manufacturing facility at Waluj
received the Establishment Inspection Report (EIR) from
US FDA. Wockhardt Limited constantly seeks and

our corporate credo, Life Wins will continue to
characterize what we do and reiterate our
commitment to do it the right way.

Research that Wins
Albert Einstein said, “To raise new questions, new
possibilities, to regard old problems from a new angle,
requires creative imagination and marks real advance in
science.”
I am happy to inform you that Wockhardt Bio AG’s Research
& Development division has made significant advances in
the pharmaceutical sciences. This year, 3 more of our new
drugs under development received breakthrough
discovery status by US FDA, taking our tally to 5 new drugs
in the anti-infectives space to receive the coveted QIDP
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During the financial year 2015-16, Wockhardt Bio AG
acquired the manufacturing entity CP Pharmaceutical
Ltd and consolidates it from 1st April 2015. Accordingly,
our consolidated revenues stood at USD 419.49 million,
an increase of 1.5% as compared to FY 2014-15; while
our consolidated profit increased by 8.9% at USD 28.96
million in FY 2015-16. Currently, Net Debt to Equity Ratio
is 0.05 as compared to 0.24 as on March 31, 2015. Our
US business declined by 15% and our European markets
increased by 15%.
But there are several wins too. We filed 17 ANDAs with
US FDA and have received 2 approvals in FY 2015-16, with
84 ANDAs pending approval. Of course, QIDP status for
3 new drugs under development by US FDA, adding to the
2 that got QIDP status in FY 2014-15, is a huge win by itself.
At Wockhardt Bio AG, we are constantly seeking to grow our
business, expand our markets and launch new products.

(Qualified Infectious Disease Product) status by US FDA.
This makes Wockhardt Bio AG the only pharmaceutical
company in the world to have 5 experimental antibiotic
drugs given QIDP status by US FDA, making way for an
accelerated drug development cycle in addition to
providing a five-year extension of the exclusivity period,
post approval.
This momentous achievement catapults Wockhardt Bio AG
amongst a group of select global drug makers that include
Roche, Merck, Allergan and AstraZeneca. It validates our

implements measures towards remediation and
compliance and are confident of achieving full regulatory
compliance soon.

Excellence that Wins
I am happy to announce that excellence has become a
byword for Team Wockhardt.
Leadership champion and former CEO of the iconic
Campbell Soup Company, Douglas Conant gets it right
when he says, “To win in the marketplace you must first win
in the workplace.”
I will conclude with a profound quote by eminent 19th
century French physiologist and medical researcher Claude
Bernard. “Art is I; science is we.” Wockhardt Bio AG will
continue to focus on R&D and innovation. We will
continuously seek and strive to do good, act better and do
what is best for us and our stakeholders. In this endeavor,
every success and every achievement, on an individual as
well as on an organisational level, will be a big win.

Dr. Habil Khorakiwala,
Founder Chairman & Group CEO
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Breakthrough Drugs Under Development with QIDP Status from US FDA

Levonadifloxacin (INN for WCK 771)

This is a unique Gram-negative targeted product based on a novel
mechanism of action driven by one of its constituents,Zidebactam
(INN for WCK 5107), a ß-lactam enhancer, combined with a
cephalosporin (Cefepime).

It is a broader spectrum bactericidal anti Methicillin-resistant
Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) drug whose novel structural
attributes of Levonadifloxacin leads to a differentiated mechanism
of action against MRSA. Its resistant pathogen coverage includes
MRSA, Community-Acquired MRSA, Vancomycin-resistant
Staphylococcus aureus (VRSA), Multi drug-resistant (MDR)
Pneumococci, Clindamycin-resistant Group B Streptococci,
E.coli, Klebsiella, Enterobacter, Salmonella and Gram-positive
& Gram-negative anaerobes.

It has the broadest ever coverage of life threatening infections
including Extensively Drug Resistant (XDR), Pathogens, Metallo-ßlactamase, Multi-Drug Resistant (MDR) Pseudomonas and
Acinetobacter.

Its treatment potential includes acute bacterial skin and
skin structure infections, hospital-acquired pneumonia caused
by MRSA, diabetic foot infections and community-acquired
pneumonia.

WCK 5222
Zidebactam

Cefepime

It is a high-efficacy product for high-mortality indications like
Hospital-Acquired Bacterial Pneumonia (HABP), Bloodstream
Infections (BSI), Intra-abdominal and urinary tract infections.

Alalevonadifloxacin (INN for WCK 2349)

Nafithromycin (INN for WCK 4873)

It is a novel L-alanine ester prodrug of Levonadifloxacin with
remarkably high oral bio availability. It is being developed as an
oral fluoroquinolone antibacterial agent that displays excellent
coverage for Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA).
Its resistant pathogen coverage includes MRSA, CommunityAcquired MRSA, Vancomycin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus
(VRSA), Multi drug-resistant (MDR) Pneumococci, Clindamycinresistant Group B Streptococci, E.coli, Klebsiella, Enterobacter,
Salmonella and Gram-positive & Gram-negative anaerobes.

This is a novel lactone ketolide antibiotic designed to target MDR
pneumococci, a bacterial pathogen contributing to the highest
number of deaths globally.

This agent is being developed for the treatment of Acute bacterial
skin and skin structure infections (ABSSSI), Hospital-acquired
bacterial pneumonia (HABP) caused by MRSA, diabetic foot
infections and community-acquired pneumonia.

Clinically attractive attributes of WCK 4873 include best-in-class
oral pharmacokinetics, highest level of lung tissue and alveolar
macrophage penetration and good hepatic safety.
It is being developed to treat community-acquired pneumonia,
pneumococcal bacteraemia, otitis media, chlamydial urethritis
and upper respiratory tract infections

Wockhardt Bio AG NCEs Addressing Several Resistance Threats Identified by CDC

WCK 4282
Tazobactam

Cefepime
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This is a first ever high-proportion combination of a
well-established cephalosporin (Cefepime) with clinically
validated ß-lactamase inhibitor (Tazobactam). This combination
yields superior Extended Spectrum ß-lactamase producing
Enterobacteriaceae (ESBL) pathogen coverage extending up to
some of the Carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriaceae (CRE).
It is suitable as a first line empiric therapy for Complicated
Urinary Tract Infections (cUTI), Complicated Intra-Abdominal
Infections (cIAI), Hospital-Acquired Bacterial Pneumonia (HABP)
and Bloodstream Infections (BSI).

URGENT THREATS
Clostridium difficile
Carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriaceae (CRE)
Drug-resistant Neisseria gonorrhoeae

WCK 5222, WCK 4282
-

SERIOUS THREATS
Multidrug-resistant Acinetobacter
Extended spectrum ß-lactamase producing Enterobacteriaceae (ESBLs)
Vancomycin-resistant Enterococcus (VRE)
Drug-resistant Salmonella typhi
Multidrug-resistant Pseudomonas aeruginosa
Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA)
Drug-resistant Streptococcus pneumoniae

WCK 5222
WCK 5222, WCK 4282
WCK 5222, WCK 4282
WCK 5222, WCK 4282
WCK 771, WCK 2349
WCK 4873, WCK 2349

CONCERNING THREATS
Vancomycin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (VRSA)
Erythromycin-resistant Group A Streptococcus
Clindamycin-resistant Group A Streptococcus

WCK 771, WCK 2349
WCK 4873, WCK 2349
WCK 4873, WCK 2349
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. HABIL KHORAKIWALA
Chairman, Wockhardt Bio AG

Mr. ADRIAN ASHURST

Dr. Habil Khorakiwala founded Wockhardt in 1967. Today, the Wockhardt Group
is India's leading research-based global healthcare enterprise with relevance in
the fields of Pharmaceuticals, Biotechnology, Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (APIs) and Super Speciality Hospitals. An alumnus of Purdue
University and Harvard Business School, he is the only non-American in the
125-year history of Purdue University to be awarded an Honorary Doctorate,
the highest award that they bestow.

Mr. Adrian Ashurst is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales. As a Director of Wockhardt Bio AG, he is involved in all critical
company-related, financial and business matters associated with Wockhardt
Bio AG. Mr. Ashurst started his career with PriceWaterhouseCoopers, where he
held various positions between 1969 and 1982. He then moved to Business
Information, where he took responsibility for various areas at European level
from 1982 to 1987. Mr. Ashurst served as Managing Director of Dun & Bradstreet
in Zurich from 1988 to 1994. Between 1994 and 1996, Mr. Ashurst joined
Graham Associates AG, a company that provides financial, accounting and
consultancy services. After a four-year stint as head of finance and human
resources at Intrum Justitia AG, he returned to Graham Associates AG in 2001,
where he remains to the present day.

A member of the World Economic Forum, Dr. Khorakiwala has held many senior
positions as an industry representative, and has been lauded and awarded by
various institutions and organisations. As a former president of FICCI
(Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce & Industry), he has met and
shared India's business and economic dynamics with many Presidents, Prime
Ministers and Heads-of-State.

Director, Wockhardt Bio AG

He is currently the Chairman of the Board of Governors at the Centre for
Organisation Development in Hyderabad, a non-profit, scientific and industrial
research organisation and a recognised doctoral research centre. He is also the
Chancellor of Jamia Hamdard University, New Delhi, which has emerged as an
outstanding institution of higher learning with distinct and focused
academic programmes.

Mr. AJAY SAHNI
Managing Director, Wockhardt Bio AG
Mr. Ajay Sahni began his professional life in the consumer goods sector at
L'Oreal in Belgium and France. Thereafter, he switched to the pharmaceutical
industry where he has spent the past 19 years. Initially, he worked for the Sanofi
Group for whom he was active in France, the United States and Singapore. He
then moved to Ferring Pharmaceutical Products in Denmark and Switzerland,
before joining Wockhardt Bio AG. His career has progressed from financial
management and business development (including mergers and acquisitions)
to financial management for the Southeast Asia region and ultimately to his
position as Managing Director of Wockhardt Bio AG.

Dr. MURTAZA KHORAKIWALA
Director, Wockhardt Bio AG
Dr. Murtaza Khorakiwala represents a unique blend of scientific knowledge and
business acumen. A graduate in medicine from GS Medical College, Mumbai,
India, and a Master in Business Administration (MBA) from the University of
Illinois, USA, he has been Managing Director of Wockhardt Ltd. since April 2009.
Thinking out of the box, challenging assumptions and innovation are some of
the key principles that shape his strategic thought process. His young and
dynamic leadership has become the ideal springboard for various corporate
initiatives in creating a new Wockhardt.
A member of the executive committee of the Indian Pharmaceutical
Association (IPA), he was the Past Chairman of the Marketing Committee of the
Bombay Management Association.
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FINANCIAL & BUSINESS REVIEW ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FY 2015-16 PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
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During the financial year 2015-16, Wockhardt Bio acquired the manufacturing entity CP Pharmaceutical Ltd and consolidates
it from 1st April, 2015.
Furthermore, the company’s parent, Wockhardt Limited’s manufacturing facility at L1-Chikaltana in Aurangabad, received
clearance from UK MHRA with an unrestricted GMP certificate, resuming supplies of products to UK market, while inspections from
US FDA took place in various manufacturing sites for which Wockhardt Limited submitted appropriate reply to US FDA.
The company’s other European businesses (France & Ireland) were not affected by the regulatory compliance requirements.
Wockhardt Bio R&D expenses continued to grow keeping in view its strategic focus on Pharma, Biotech & NCE segments, at 13.5%
of consolidated revenues.

0
2014-15

2015-16

25
2014-15

2015-16

CONSOLIDATED REVENUES
In the financial year 2015-16, the consolidated revenues increased by 1.5% to USD 419.49 million from USD 413.30 million
achieved during the previous year 2014-15. Despite the increase, the growth pattern is mixed between regions; while US business
decreased by 15%, the European business increased by 15%, and Rest of the World continues to grow by 25%. The increase in
European business includes the one-time opportunity in Contract Manufacturing from UK business.

FY 2015-16
419.49
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Change
6.19

in %
1.5%

88.0
Mar 16

100.8
Dec 15

115.9
Sept 15

93.9
Mar 15

113.2

103.3
Dec 14

June 15

106.0
Sept 14

QUARTERLY NET SALES
103.1

On a quarterly basis, Q1 and Q2 Net sales are higher
compared to its corresponding quarters in
previous year due to one-time business
opportunity in United Kingdom whereas Net
sales for Q3 and Q4 has declined compared to its
like to like quarters in the previous year due to
decline in United States business on account of
continued regulatory alerts.

FY 2014-15
413.30

June 14

USD in million
Consolidated Revenues
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PROFITABILITY

14.00%
12.00%

12.2%

59.2%

50.0%

0.25

10.00%

40.0%

The Net Debt to Equity ratio decreased to 0.05, compared to 0.24 in the previous
year 2014-15, resulting from a stronger percentage of decrease (40%) in total
financial liabilities compare to a lower percentage of decrease (22%) in cash &
cash equivalents and securities.

0.24

60.0%

15.4%

16.00%

63.0%

70.0%

DEBT AND LEVERAGE

0.2
0.15

8.00%
0.1

6.00%

20.0%

4.00%

10.0%

2.00%

0.0%

0.00%

2014-15

2015-16

0.05
0

2014-15

2015-16

GROSS MARGINS

EBITDA & EBITDA Margins

The Gross Margin improved at 63.0%

Company’s EBITDA margin declined to 12.2%

compared to previous year.

compared to 15.4% in the previous year.

Material consumption for financial year 2015-16 stood at 37.0% of sales compared to 40.8% in financial year 2014-15, largely due to
an improvement in overall European market, despite the decline in US business.
Following the consolidation of the acquired manufacturing entity CP Pharmaceutical Ltd, Personnel expenses and Other
operating expenses were at 50.8% of sales for financial year 2015-16 compared to 43.8% for financial year 2014-15. The increase in
Other operating expenses is driven by the continued emphasis on R&D at 13.5% in financial year 2015-16; and, by the Personnel
expense increased at 17.3% in financial year 2015-16 compared to 12.1% in previous year 2014-15.

12%

15%

14%

41%
15%

37%

Material Consumption
Personnel Expenses
Other Expenses
R&D

17%

EBITDA

12%

2014-15

2015-16

Net Debt / Equity
DEBT POSITION
USD in million

FY 2015-16

FY 2014-15

Change

in %

Short-term financial liabilities

49.64

109.11

(59.47)

(54.5)%

Long-term financial liabilities

73.38

96.05

(22.67)

(23.6)%

123.02

205.16

(82.14)

(40.0)%

Total financial liabilities

CASH FLOW

NCIAL YEAR 2015-16
FINA

L YEAR 201
NCIA
4-1
A
N
5
FI

0.05

30.0%

Company’s cash flow from operating activities stood at USD 59.15 million during the financial year 2015-16, an increase of USD
53.89 million compared to prior year 2015-16. The company attributes the increase to the reduction in other receivables and
adjustment of advances against the supplies.
Cash flow from investing activities decreased from USD 38.03 million in the prior year 2014-15 to USD 29.01 million in the financial
year 2015-16. The decrease is mainly attributed to increased investment in Tangible and Intangible Assets which went up by USD
22.64 million even though there has been an additional inflow of USD 13.62 million from liquidation of short-term investments.
Consequently, the free cash flow increased in financial year 2015-16 at USD 88.16 million, compared to USD 43.29 million in prior
year 2014-15.
The company had also repaid the short-term and long-term financial liabilities for USD 82.15 million during the financial year
2015-16 and raised funds through share capital increase resulting from exercise of stock option.
Accordingly, the company’s cash & cash equivalents increased from USD 74.75 million as on 31st March 2015 to USD 104.09 million
as on 31st March 2016.

20%

17%
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GLOBAL OUTLOOK
The global pharma market continued its growth journey to become a trillion dollar industry at USD 1.07 trillion in 2015. It is
expected to attain USD 1.4 trillion by 2020 with a compound average growth rate (CAGR) of 4-7%. This growth will majorly flow
from patented drugs offset by loss of exclusivities in developed markets.
Patented segment is expected to see robust flow of new medicines especially into oncology along with some price impacts. Loss of
exclusivity for patented products is expected to reduce innovator products spending by USD 178 billion as entry of biosimilars
begins to have larger impact. This will include both small drug molecules and biologics.
It was again a significant year for patent expiry and major drugs like Esomeprazole and Aripiprazole accounting for over
USD 5 billion each were genericised. The first five years of this decade (2011-2015) have been significant with about USD 150 billion
(Source: IMS Global Use of Medicines in 2020)
worth of drugs losing patent.
47
298

125

178

$1,400
-1,430Bn

57

China
China’s continued growth for last couple of years made the current market size to about USD 115 billion making it ahead of Japan.
China’s decade long access expansion is targeting basic medical insurance to entire 1.4 billion population by 2020 though not at
rapid growth, owing to the slowing Chinese economy and lower consumer spending. 2016 – 2020 CAGR is expected to be
between 6-9% making the market to USD 170 billion – 180 billion through 2020. Patented products’ share of spending will remain
at 23% (+5pts), generic share at 25%(-3 pts) and Non original brand share at 35% (-3 pts).
(Source: IMS Global Use of Medicines in 2020)

Japan
Japan’s Pharma market size in 2015 which is estimated to be USD 79 billion is expected to grow slowly at CAGR of 0-3% in the next
4 years to close 2020 between USD 85 billion – 90 billion. The share of branded spending which is currently at 67% is expected to
contract. 2020 generic share of spending would remain at 9%.The incentive to wider generic usage is expected to significantly
improve the generic spending. Japan’s growth is expected to return to historic patterns through 2020 and the long term effects of
the new price regime will see average prices unchanged from 2015. The introduction of VAT in 2014 and planned increase to sales
tax during 2016-2018 could offset expected growth and lead to zero growth for the next 3-4 years.
(Source: IMS Global Use of Medicines in 2020)

Emerging Markets and RoW
$1,069Bn

2015

Brand

LOE

Generic*

Pharmerging

Other**

2020

Developed
Source: IMS health market prognosis, September 2015: IMS Institute for healthcare informatics, October 2015
Note: Growth is shown in constant US $ with an exchange rate adjustment in the other category as the aggregate difference between constant and
forecast exchange rates. Brands lower spending due to loss of exclusivity (LOE) is shown for developed markets only. Brand spending in 2020 will be
$120Bn greater than 2015 including $298Bn of growth and offset by $178Bn of LOE. Spending is shown at list and invoice price levels and does not
reflect off-invoice discounts and rebates.
*Generic is developed markets includes Generics + $24Bn. Non original Brand + $23Bn, OTC + $10Bn. **Other includes Rest of World + $21Bn and
exchange rate effects + $26Bn.

The combined market size for India, Brazil and Russia put together as of 2015 is USD 57 billion which is expected to grow up to
USD 90 billion through 2020 growing at 10% CAGR. Other RoW markets which accounts for USD 249 billion in 2015 is expected to
grow at CAGR of 4% to USD 305 billion in 2020. Pharmaceutical markets in these economies like India, Brazil and Russia etc. Are
primarily comprised of generic medicines and hence the growth is determined by the growth of this subsector. While Brazil and
Russia are expected to clock CAGR of 12% and 14% respectively through 2020, India is well placed to have a growth profile with
CAGR of 8%. It is expected to grow to USD 20 Billion by 2020 from current levels of USD 12-14 billion.
The Russian pharmaceutical market is one of the country’s dynamic industries having consistently outperformed national GDP
growth rates. An analysis of the pharma market, however, suggests that regulatory obstacles are more likely to hamper FDI than
the current economic recession. The Russian Pharma market experienced 27% growth rate (in Rouble terms) between 2011-2013
and the market was projected to expand threefold by 2020. However, as a result of the deteriorating economic situation in Russia,
the beginning of 2015 saw a reduction of the annual rate of pharma market growth to 7.5% which is expected to be range bound
and not exceeding 10% till 2020.
Region – USD Billion
US
Eu5
China
Japan
India , Brazil , Russia
RoW
Total

GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD
USA
US spending on medicines currently estimated at USD 425 billion are expected to reach USD 560-590 billion which is about 34%
increase on 2015 levels. This growth will be driven by innovation & price increases offset by loss of exclusivity. Patented products’
share of spending is continued to be at about 67%. The impact of patent expiries, though higher in absolute dollar terms, is
expected to be lower in percentage contribution compared to last five years. Generics will continue to provide majority of
prescription medicine usage (90% plus) by 2020 whereas Invoice price growth will continue to remain at historic levels through
2020.
(Source: IMS Global Use of Medicines in 2020)

FY 15
425
144
115
79
57
249
1,069

FY 20
570
190
175
85
90
305
1,415

22%

23%
Europe
EU5 current estimated market size USD 144 billion is expected to grow at CAGR of 4%-7% to about USD 190 billion by 2020 which
would include USD 20 billion of exchange rate effects alone. This growth is majorly going to be dominated by Germany (USD 41
billion to USD 57 billion), Italy (USD 25 billion to USD 35 billion) and wider adoption of speciality medicines. 2020 patented
products share of spending is expected to be at about 63%. Other major European countries including Spain, Italy & France, those
who are facing budgetary challenges as fallout of global economic crisis, may see decline in volumes on per capita basis.

2015

40%
5%

2020

USA

40%

6%

13%

RoW
EU5
China

6%

7%
11%

CAGR%
6%
6%
9%
1%
10%
4%
6%

12%

Japan

13%

India, Brazil, Russia

(Source: IMS Global Use of Medicines in 2020)
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GENERIC PENETRATION
Generic share of prescriptions will continue to rise across the market. In US the generic penetration currently between 85-88% will
rise to 91-92% levels by 2020. The major geographical change in generic prescriptions will be in Japan, a traditionally patented and
brand forte, where the Health ministry foresees the generic share to 80% by 2020 from under 55% currently. EU and Major EM
countries have traditionally been generic or branded generic oriented already along with Price controls for patented drugs, and
the scenario is set to continue. In EMs though there is a movement towards pure generic drugs with government support
compared to currently dominating branded generic case. Hence there is a possibility of shift within generic scenario
bringing price consolidation.
Growth in Generic and Branded generic products between 2016-20 is expected to be 6.1%, higher than the branded products
growth (5.1%) and OTC/other (4.8%) and will increase the overall share of Generic penetration (pure generic and branded generic)
to 35% by 2020.

emergence of carbapenem resistant bacteria and discovery of New Delhi Metallobactamase (NDMs). US alone witnesses about 7
million infections of which 2 million are resistant infections with direct cost of treatment at USD 20 Billion and further
USD 35 Billion in loss of productivity. (CDC 2013)
While regulated countries have strong patient tracking mechanisms built in to monitor the growth of drug resistant bacteria and
undertake corrective measures, the emerging countries where antibiotic abuse is rampant and organism growth is high and
untraceable, these drug resistant bacteria will be a cause of major concern. Most of the regularly used antibiotics like Azithromycin,
Clarithromycin, PipTaz, various cephalosporin, etc. have attained a resistance level of 15-25% in regulated markets and much more
in emerging markets. With globalisation yielding high frequency of travel between countries, regulated markets too will be at high
risk of infection incidences, just as was witnessed in rise of another resistant bacteria Acinetobacter in USA via troops returning
from Middle east.
With the movement of drug majors to more lifestyle oriented drugs (cardiovascular, diabetes management etc.) the new antibiotic
drug development queue has for long been a thin one. It has largely been left to relatively newer or specialised entities like your
company to undertake the research in developing new antibiotics countering the rise of these superbugs.

DEVELOPMENTS IN BIOSIMILARS SPACE

OPPORTUNITIES
The global Biosimilar market is expected to grow at CAGR of 49.1% to USD 55 billion by 2020. Biologics with patents expiring
between 2015 and 2020 constitute the second wave of biosimilars. Biosimilars is expected to account for 4% to 10% of the
biologics market total by 2020, depending on the number of biosimilars launched in the U.S. The U.S. is the largest market for
biologics and the biosimilars can achieve 10% of the global sales in 2020, only if the volume growth for biologics is achieved in the
U.S. market.
There is a large pipeline of biosimilars in different stages of development, with more than 160 biosimilars that relates to six top
selling biologics whose patents are set to expire between 2015-2020. Till recently, industry did not see any significant biosimilars
development activity for the third wave of biologics with patent expiries beyond 2020. One important factor for this is the lower
market value of these products.
Since the first set of over-arching guidelines for biosimilars released by the European Medicines Agency in 2005, there has been
much development in this space. The evolution continues, as earlier guidelines have been revised or are in the process of revision.
The US Food and Drug Administration (US FDA) released its first set of draft guidelines in 2012 followed by additional guidelines in
2014-15, and others are in the pipeline. US FDA guidelines in the pipeline are expected to cover interchangeability, statistical
approaches to evaluation of analytical similarity, and labelling of biosimilars.
Approvals of more biosimilars for anti-TNF biologics, as well as biosimilars for oncology products, are anticipated in 2016.
Interchangeability/substitution and naming are two important considerations in the uptake of biosimilars once
they are launched.

INDUSTRY R&D PIPELINE – USD BILLION
Global R&D pipeline
NPV of R&D Pipeline - June 2014
Less : Approvals
Add : New Projects
Add : Revaluation of Base NPV
NPV of R&D Pipeline - June 2015

419
-70
80
64
493

The (NPV) of the industry’s R&D pipeline surged 18% over last year’s reported to
USD 493 billion as on June 2015. One technology wave that is taking the industry
by storm is projects targeting the programmed death-1 (PD-1) pathway with
many leading players in the fray. Should these projects get approved the value
will likely be revised upward, due to the removal of approval risk from the NPV.
R&D expenditure is forecast to grow at a modest 2% per year to 2020, reaching
Source: EvaluatePharma® (22 May 2015)
USD 160 billion.

GLOBAL ANTIBIOTIC SCENARIO AND NEW DEVELOPMENTS
Growth in global antibiotic resistance is not a new phenomenon. What’s alarming though is the rate of growth and the possibility
of phasing out of some of the most commonly used antibiotic drugs in a not so far future. Last year witnessed another antibiotic
defence being breached in form of emergence of Polymixin resistant bacteria. Though it will be low in number of incidence but
Polymixins were themselves toxic enough to be given only in extremely rare cases of infection, and this is a major setback after the
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The Global Biosimilar market is one of the biggest opportunity in the years to come with USD 62–67 billion worth of drugs going off
patent by 2020. This growth will further be propelled with the key focus shift of regulators, tax payers, state governments towards
cost containment and cheaper drug access and financial pressures on healthcare industry to make significant cost reductions.
With US FDA opening up the regulatory pathways the US biosimilars market alone is projected to be around USD 25 billion by 2020
(Source - 2014 Thomson Reuters & GABI Online report). The acceptance of biosimilars in Europe is also quite impressive.
Growth opportunities in US, UK, Europe and in other Emerging markets are significantly high for the company because of the
existing presence of operations in these economies. Your company is striving in all aspects to establish its brand and ramp up its
presence and operations in larger GCC countries, Latin American Countries, new markets like Australia, New Zealand, Turkey and
not last but significant partnerships in China, Japan and Korea. Wockhardt Bio AG (the Company) is also in the process of
constructing a state-of-the-art manufacturing facility in Jebel Ali Free Trade Zone (JAFZA), Dubai, UAE, for the manufacture of
speciality drugs for the US / European markets.
There is a global crisis of availability of antibiotics to fight growing numbers of resistant bacteria and there has been a big void in
Anti Infective as relatively very few drugs have been discovered in the last decade. However the Company’s relentless focus for
almost two decades in the Anti-Infective space has started showing recognition with consecutive approvals for QIDP in quick
succession. With the rise in number of new organisms and new strains of old organisms with significant resistance to existing
medicines, the Company with its array of under-development drugs in this space aims to counter these unmet needs in both gram
positive and gram negative bacterial infections in both regulated and unregulated markets. During the last year (2014), the
Company received approvals for WCK 771 & WCK 2349 and in 2015 approvals were received for WCK 4873, WCK 4282 and
WCK 5222, making it the only company globally to receive QIDP status for 5 drugs from US FDA. Qualified Infectious Disease
Product (QIDP) is granted to drugs, identified by Center for Disease Control (CDC), USA, that act against Pathogens which have a
high degree of unmet needs in their treatment. QIDP status also provides fast track clinical trials & review of the drug application by
US FDA and a five year extension of market exclusivity post product approval in the US.

RISK
Quality compliance, globally, has gained significant impetus and has emerged as a key success factor for long term sustenance.
Global Regulatory management continues to remain a key focus area for entire pharmaceutical industry with agencies like
US FDA, EMA, Anvisa and COFEPRIS etc. continuously enhancing the benchmark at regular intervals. The evolving cGMP
regulations have become stringent and the industry is striving unanimously to create world class capabilities to adhere to the
mandates. The Company’s parent, Wockhardt Limited which had received a setback during 2013 undertook several measures to
upgrade its regulatory framework in its manufacturing locations. These efforts have paid off in the current year 2015 with the
Company’s parent receiving the unrestricted cGMP certificate from the UK MHRA for its facility in Chikalthana, Maharashtra, India.
Corrective measures for US FDA clearance are in process with significant automation, technology upgrades and rollout of best
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practices at the manufacturing facilities. The Shendra facility in Aurangabad, Maharashtra, India received nine observations from
US FDA during the year which are of non-critical nature and are not related to data integrity issues. The Company’s parent is
monitoring the situation closely and is confident of having some resolution in the coming year.
Last year was pretty dismal for major economies like Europe, Russia, China and other Emerging countries like Brazil, Greece facing
decade-long economic uncertainties. The geopolitical instabilities in many countries have translated into currency and
commodity volatility – oil price crash and devaluation for many currencies. The Company is a global player and is not insulated
against such external risks despite the best financial practices and wide range of measures being taken. This has also to some
extent impacted the earnings with reference to countries where the Company operates in the home currency of these nations.
This is an inherent risk which is carried when a company operates trans-border.

TRANSFORMATION IN DISEASE TREATMENTS THROUGH 2020
A) Novel Active Substances (NAS): In 2020 there will be 943 NAS introduced in the prior 25 years and the vast majority will
be available to populations around the world. These new medicines will treat oncology and orphan diseases and provide
a range of speciality small molecule medicines. Patients will have greater access to breakthrough therapies and clusters
of innovation around hepatitis C, cancer, autoimmune diseases, and heart disease and orphan drugs.
B) Oncology treatments will include more immunotherapies, targeted therapies and personalised medicines, sometimes
used together in a regimen, improving further survival and life expectancy.
C) By 2020, the treatment options for orphan diseases - those affecting fewer than 200,000 patients in either the US or
Europe - will be at an all-time high. Some 470 orphan treatments will be available, including medicines with multiple
uses and those with both orphan and non-orphan indications.
D) Other developments include clinical transformations in diseases like Hepatitis C bringing highly effective treatments
with fewer side effects.
E) There are fifteen new HIV treatments at advanced stage of clinical trials many of which can be expected to be available in
2020 including a new medicine with a US FDA breakthrough designation that targets a mechanism with reduced
potential for viral resistance.
F) Cell and Gene therapies are thought to offer some of the most powerful treatments for very hard to treat diseases and
these are currently under development which are expected to treat conditions varying from cancers to HIV,
(Source: IMS Global Use of Medicines in 2020)
autoimmune diseases and rarest of the rare conditions.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC SCENARIO
The financial year 2015-16 has set a bearish tone for most global economies with conditions getting from bad to worse for Russia,
Europe and now China.
Global growth, currently estimated at 3.1 percent in 2015, is projected at 3.4 percent in 2016 and 3.6 percent in 2017. In advanced
economies, a modest and uneven recovery is expected to continue, with a gradual further narrowing of output gaps. The picture
for emerging market and developing economies are diverse but in many cases challenging. The slowdown and rebalancing of the
Chinese economy, lower commodity prices, and strains in some large emerging economies will continue to weigh on growth
prospects in 2016–17.
The projected pickup in growth in the next two years - despite the ongoing slowdown in China - primarily reflects forecasts of a
gradual improvement of growth rates in countries currently in economic distress, notably Brazil, Russia and some countries in the
Middle East, though even this projected partial recovery could be farfetched by new economic or geopolitical shocks. Risks to the
global outlook remain tilted to the downside and relate to ongoing adjustments in the global economy: a generalised slowdown
in emerging market economies, China’s rebalancing, lower commodity prices, and the gradual exit from extraordinarily
(Source: World Economic Outlook – Jan 19, 2016)
accommodative monetary conditions in the United States.

RESEARCH
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT AS STRATEGIC CORE
The Company’s continuous strategic focus in complex research in Pharma, Biosimilars and NCEs for the last couple of years has
started showing its positive impact on the product pipeline. It is the complex matrix of research encompassing technology
intensive generic products for oral, nasal and parenteral administration, New Drug Discovery Programme and Biosimilar research
that has been playing a pivotal role for the company’s success and sustainability. Cross functional, highly educated, trained and
stable project management team has been the core factor to success. The Company has dedicated a lot of focus, investments and
initiatives to ensure that the R&D organisation stays on the threshold of latest technological advancements in the areas
it operates in.

RESEARCH EFFORTS IN NOVEL DRUG DELIVERY SYSTEMS AND ANDAS PIPELINE
During the financial year ended March 31, 2016 the Company filed for 17 new products in US and 2 in UK. Currently for the US
business, Company’s pipeline includes 84 products pending to be approved by US FDA. The Company has always been a
trendsetter in generic pharma industry with its niche NDDS products like Metoprolol ER, Divalproex ER, Tamsulosin ER which were
among the first few generics in US market. Out of the pending ANDAs about 30% ANDAs are complex generics, modified release
formulations. It has also made advancements in the area of characterisation of complex muco-polysachharides and complex
delivery technologies, integrating IT system with generic applications and has successfully developed its own patented
REMS (Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy) system for narrow therapeutic index medicines.

NEW DRUG DISCOVERY PROGRAMME
The Company’s focus on New Drug Discovery Programme targeting Antibacterial infections has started yielding promising drug
candidates. These drugs are targeting the current and emerging unmet needs in both gram positive and gram negative terrain
where the dearth of medicine is substantial across the world. Anti-Infectives are the only class of medicines which has a curative
therapeutic outcome and hence the merits of drug candidates in this class are decided based on clinical efficacy against resistant,
difficult-to-treat organisms.
Globally most of the innovator companies have focused on cardiovascular, diabetes and other lifestyle diseases or oncology which
has left a big void in Anti-Infective space. With the global rise in the prevalence of resistant strains, and the emergence of newer
resistance mechanisms as well as new pathogenic organisms, where the existing antibiotics are having little impact, the overall
infectious disease scenario is highly concerning. The Company with its array of drugs under development in this space aims to
counter these diseases in both regulated and unregulated markets.
Two of our drug candidates (WCK 771 & WCK 2349) received QIDP (Qualified Infectious Disease Product) status from US FDA during
the FY 2014-15. Three more drugs under clinical development, WCK 4873, WCK 4282 and WCK 5222 have been granted QIDP status
in the current year. QIDP was constituted under Generating Antibiotic Incentives Now (GAIN) Act in 2012 as part of the FDA Safety
and Innovation Act to underline the urgency in new antibiotics development. The Company has earned a unique distinction of
being the only company globally which has five in-house discovered drugs with QIDP status.
With the rise in the number of new organisms and newer resistance mechanisms, where the existing medicines are having
diminishing impact, the Company has consolidated its position as the leading innovator in the antibacterial space.

COMPANY OUTLOOK
The Company’s long term outlook continues to be promising given the following:
A.
Overall growth in the global pharmaceutical industry.
b.
Continued focus on R&D in regards to its complex generic, bio technology and NCE programs.
c.
Company’s global reach in regulated markets and continued efforts to enhance its reach in emerging markets.
D.
Increasing pipeline of niche & complex technology generic products.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1.

GROUP STRUCTURE

Wockhardt Bio AG (hereinafter referred to as “company”), based in Zug, is an 85.85 percent owned subsidiary of Wockhardt Limited
(India). Wockhardt Bio AG is active in the development, manufacturing, and marketing of Pharmaceutical and Bio-pharmaceutical
formulations, and caters primarily to markets in the United States, the United Kingdom, Ireland, France, and Latin America.
Wockhardt Bio AG has its registered office at Grafenauweg 6, CH-6300, Zug, Switzerland.

2.

On August 13, 2015, the company issued 5 million option rights, being granted to the Chairman of the Board, to be exercised at any
point in time on or before January 31, 2020. The established purchase price was the prevailing market price of the share at each
time of exercising those option rights.
On September 13, 2015, the Chairman of the Board exercised its right to subscribe in full to the 5 million option rights at the
prevailing market price. The share capital was thus increased out of the authorised capital by CHF 5,000,000 by issuing 5,000,000
bearer shears with a nominal value of CHF 1.00 per share, paid up in full.
The bearer shares have been listed on the BX Berne eXchange since December 19, 2013 under the security number 19304250.
The ISIN is CH0193042501, and the ticker symbol is WBIO.
On March 31, 2016, the closing bid price for the company share was CHF 1.01 per share, while the closing ask price for the company
share was CHF 9.99. The last share price traded on the BX Berne eXchange was CHF 3.50 per share on December 17, 2015.
(a)

SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE

According to the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is authorised until September 8, 2016 to increase the share
capital by up to CHF 18,474,000 by issuing up to 18,474,000 fully paid up bearer shares with a nominal value of CHF 1.00
each.

The following shareholder owns 3% or more of Wockhardt Bio AG share capital as at March 31, 2016:
Shareholder
Wockhardt Limited (India)
Dr. Habil F. Khorakiwala

Authorised share capital

Number of Shares

% of capital

44,600,000

85.85%

The issue price, the type of contribution, the conditions for the exercise of the pre-emptive rights as well as the beginning of
the dividend rights are to be determined by the Board of Directors.

5,000,000

9.62%

The pre-emptive rights which are not exercised are at the disposal of the Board of Directors to be used in the best interest of
the company.
The capital increase, the conversion of shares, the pre-emptive rights, the share certificates, and transferability of shares are
governed by Articles 4 to 8 of the Articles of Association.

In connection with shareholder participation as per art. 20 BEHG, the company has published the following disclosure notice:

(b) Convertible bonds, options, participation certificates and dividend right certificates
The company has not issued convertible bonds, participation certificates or dividend right certificates as per
March 31, 2016.
Offenlegung von Beteiligungen
an Wockhardt BIO AG, Grafenauweg 6, 6300 Zug
Wockhardt Ltd., Wockhardt Towers
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East
400 051 Mumbai, Indien

44'600'000 Inhaberaktien zu CHF 1.00

Dr. Habil Fakhruddin Khorakiwala
Casa Khorakiwala, 31E Vakil Lane
400 026 Mumbai, Indien

5'000'000 Inhaberaktien zu CHF 1.00

Total

49'600'000 Inhaberaktien zu CHF 1.00 oder 95.48%

Art der Absprache:

Dr. Habil Fakhruddin Khorakiwala ist
Einzelzeichnungsberechtigter Verwaltungsratsprasident der
Wockhardt Ltd.

Auslosender Sachverhalt:
Datum des Erwerbs:

3.

Kapitalerhohung vom 18.09.2015 (VR-Sitzung)
18.09.2015

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

4.

COMPANY ‘S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company is committed to sound corporate governance and high standards of ethical behaviour that are essential to enhance
the stakeholder’s value. The core values of company’s governance process include independence, integrity, accountability,
transparency, responsibility and fairness. The company continues to build on the strong foundation of existing governance
practices through creating new ones.
5.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth the name; year joined the Board, and designation of each member of the Board of Directors.
Name

Designation

Dr. Habil F. Khorakiwala

Chairman of the Board

First Elected
2012

Adrian J. Ashurst

Director & Member of the Board

2007

Dr. Murtaza H. Khorakiwala

Director & Member of the Board

2012

Ajay Sahni

Director & Member of the Board (1)

2008

(1) in charge of Executive Management
As of March 31, 2016, the share capital amounted to CHF 51,948,000 consisting of 51,948,000 bearer shares with a nominal value of
CHF 1.00 per share. The share capital is fully paid up. Each share entitles the holder to one vote as well as to an equal share of the
distribution of profit shown in the balance sheet as dividends and to an equal share of any liquidation proceeds, both in proportion
to its par value.
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Wockhardt Bio AG’s Articles of Association provide for a Board or Directors consisting of three or more members. The company
currently has four members on the Board of Directors. Members of the Board are elected and released by the General Meeting of
the Shareholders in each case for a term of office of one year. Re-election is allowed.
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6.

(a) Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate direction of the company and the supervision of the executive
management. It represents the company vis-à-vis third parties and shall attend to all matters which are not delegated to or
reserved for another corporate body of the company pursuant to the law, the Articles of Association or the by-laws. The
Board of Directors ensures that it receives sufficient information from the executive management to perform its supervisory
duty and make the decisions that are reserved to the Board of Directors.
Participation of the majority of the members of the Board of Directors is required to constitute a quorum to discuss and pass
resolutions. Resolutions confirming an increase in share capital and regarding amendments to the Articles of Association
entailed thereby may be passed by a single member of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors adopts its resolution by
a majority of the votes cast. In a tie, the Chairman has the casting vote.

(a) Voting-right restrictions and representation
At the General Meeting of the Shareholders, the shareholders presenting the share certificate(s) or a statement of deposit
are entitled to vote. Each share entitles to one vote. The shareholders may only be represented by other shareholders being
authorised by written proxies or the independent representative.
(b) Quorums according to the Articles of Association
Unless otherwise provided for by law or in the Articles of Association, the General Meeting of Shareholders will adopt its
resolutions and carry out its elections upon a relative majority of the share votes represented. Art. 14 al. 2 of the Articles of
Association provides, that the quorum of Art. 704 CO must be fulfilled for any vote on the change of the company’s name,
the issue of profit bearing certificates and any changes to the share capital or the participation capital. In addition, for all
votes concerning the election or release of a Member of the Board, the exclusion of pre-emptive rights or votes subject to
art. 704 CO, half the company’s registered share capital must be represented at the General Meeting of the Shareholders.

(b) Chairman of the Board of Directors
The Chairman of the Board of Directors calls, prepares, and chairs the meeting of the Board of Directors. The Chairman also
chairs the General Meeting of the Shareholders, and supervises the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of
Directors and generally supervises the executive management, who regularly reports on all important matters of the
company.
(c) Compensation Committee

If a vote cannot be completed upon the first ballot, the Chairman shall have the casting vote.
(c) Convening the General Meeting of the Shareholders and agenda items
The General Meeting of the Shareholders is convened at least 20 days prior to the meeting by publication of the notice on
company website, and in the Swiss Official Gazette of Commerce (SOGC).

The Compensation Committee consists of one or more members of the Board of Directors directly elected by the General
Meeting of the Shareholders for a one year term. Re-election is possible. If a member of the Compensation Committee exits
the Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors shall elect one of its members to the Compensation Committee for
the remaining term.
Subject to the inalienable rights of the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of the Shareholders, the Compensation
Committee passes resolutions concerning the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors, and the executive
management.

Shareholders together representing shares corresponding to at least ten percent of the share capital may request,
that Board of Directors shall convene an extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders or that an item be put
on the agenda.
(d) Change of control and blocking mechanisms
The company has opted out of the requirement to submit public takeover bids as per art. 22 al. 2 Swiss Stock Exchange Act
(art. 8 of the Articles of Association). There are no change-of-control clauses with members of the Board of Directors, of
management and/or other management personnel.

The following table sets forth the name; year elected to designation of each member of the Compensation Committee
Name

Designation

Dr. Habil F. Khorakiwala

Chairman

2014

Adrian J. Ashurst

Member

2014

First Elected

7.

(d) Executive Management

The following table sets forth the name, year of birth and principal position of the member being part of the executive
management.
Ajay Sahni

AUDITORS

(a) Duration of the mandate

The executive management, under the control of the Board of Directors conducts the operational management of the
company, and reports to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.

Name

SHAREHOLDERS’ PARTICIPATION

Year of Birth

Position

Nationality

1966

Managing Director

Belgian

(e) Remuneration
The members of the Board of Directors and executive management are entitled to remuneration corresponding
to their activities, as determined by the Board of Directors. All remuneration is paid in cash. The executive
management compensation is approved by the Compensation Committee. Detailed information is provided in the
Compensation Report.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the auditor shall be elected every year and may be re-elected. The statutory and
group auditor of Wockhardt Bio AG is BDO AG, Zurich, Switzerland. BDO AG has held the function of statutory auditor since
November 2013. The lead auditor of Wockhardt Bio AG is Mr. René Fugliester.
(b) Audit fees
In financial year 2015-2016, BDO AG charged audit fees in the amount of CHF 206,260.

8.

DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party disclosures
During the year under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of material
nature with its shareholders, directors, management or their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict
with the interest of the company at large.
(b) Risk Management Policy
The company has defined and adopted a Risk Management Policy, and Wockhardt Limited, the parent company Head of
Internal Audit assesses the risks and lays down the procedure for mitigation of the risks. The above facilitates not only risk
assessment and timely rectification by the Board of Directors but also helps to minimize the risk associated with any
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strategic, operational, and financial and compliance risk across all business operations. These control procedures and
systems ensure that the Board of Directors is periodically informed on the material risks faced by the company and the steps
taken by the company to mitigate those risks.
(c) Internal Control System
The company has designed an internal control system which is in compliance with the legal requirements and adequately
documented, for the preparation of the financial statements based on the instructions of the executive management and
the Board of Directors.

9.

INFORMATION POLICY & MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Wockhardt Bio AG publishes financial results in the form of an audited Annual Report and a Half-year Interim Report according to
Swiss GAAP-FER. Both are announced by press release. They are available on request in printed form to shareholders, and are also
made available on the company’s website at www.wockhardtbio.com.

COMPENSATION REPORT FINANCIAL 2015 - 2016
This report describes the Wockhardt Bio AG compensation program for the members of the Board of Directors and the Executive
management, and explains how they were compensated in financial year 2015-2016.

1.

COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY

The compensation philosophy is designed to motivate employees at all levels of the company to achieve shared and individual
objectives, and structured in such a way that the interests of all stakeholders are closely aligned.
The compensation system has the following objectives: it promotes a performance-oriented culture, fosters teamwork, and a
long-term commitment to the company among top performers.
The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of a Chairman and a Member, and has overall responsibility
for its compensation policy.

Where required by law or the Articles of Association, publications are made in the Swiss Official Gazette of Commerce.
Additional information which could affect the share price is published in accordance with the BX Berne eXchange adhoc
publication requirements.

10. STOCK LISTING
The bearer shares of Wockhardt Bio AG are traded at the BX Bern eXchange.
Ticker Symbols:
WBIO (Telekurs)
Securities number 19304250
ISIN CH 019 304 250 1

2.

COMPENSATION COMPONENTS

Employee compensation essentially comprises a fixed remuneration and a variable remuneration. The fixed remuneration
consists of base salary which compensates employees for the level of expertise required in their respective functions as well as
their professional experience, and of eventually allowances in order to take account of practices in the local market and to be in line
with industry standards.
The variable remuneration takes account (i) of the employee’s individual contribution to the company’s performance, (ii) of the
financial results of the organizational unit in which the employee is contributing, and (iii) of the financial results of the overall
corporate performance.
Each year, the compensation system is discussed by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Wockhardt Bio AG.
It determines the nature of the compensation paid to the members of the Board of Directors and the variable remuneration of the
Executive management.

11. CONTACT
3.

COMPENSATION AWARDED TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Wockhardt Bio AG
Ajay Sahni, Managing Director
asahni@wockhardt.com

(a) Board of Directors

Fax: +41.41.727.5221

The cash component of the compensation of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Other Members (excluding
Executive management) comprises a retainer fees that is paid each month. However, one member of the Board of Directors
waived any retainer fees.

www.wockhardtbio.com

The retainer fees received by the members of the Board of Directors (excluding Executive management) are outlined below:

Phone: +41.41.727.5226

Name

Functions

Dr. Habil F Khorakiwala

Chairman of the Board &

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

3 000 000 CHF

0

0

0

30 000 CHF

42 500 CHF

Chairman of the Compensation Committee
Dr. Murtaza H Khorakiwala
Adrian J. Ashurst

Member of the Board
Member of the Board &
Member of the Compensation Committee

Ajay Sahni
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Member of the Board & Managing Director

See paragraph (b)
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In addition, The Chairman of the Board of Directors was granted the right to purchase up to 5 million shares out of the
authorised capital, and the option price was set at the prevailing market price at the time of exercise. Therefore, the value of
these options has been determined at the value of CHF 0.

COMPENSATION REPORT OF THE STATUTORY AUDITOR 2015 - 2016

The Chairman of the Board of Directors exercised the right in the financial year 2015-16.
(b) Executive Management
The compensation paid to the Executive Management consists of base salary, allowances that are paid both in cash, and a
variable remuneration that is determined each year by the Compensation Committee and takes the form of a one-off cash
payment. In addition, the social security contributions and pension contribution are paid by the company to the
corresponding agencies.
Mr Ajay Sahni, Managing Director and member of the Board of Directors, is the highest paid as Executive management;
details are outlined below:
Base salary
Allowances (1)
Variable remuneration
Total cash compensation

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

321 900 CHF

312 000 CHF

93 540 CHF

93 540 CHF

135 960 CHF

132 000 CHF

551 400 CHF

537 540 CHF

Social security contributions

27 763 CHF

26 746 CHF

Pension contribution

51 696 CHF

50 830 CHF

Global compensation

630 859 CHF

615 115 CHF

(1) Includes car, family and medical allowances.

Base salary and allowances are disclosed as paid out in the year of reference. Variable remuneration as disclosed is based on
pre-defined targets, accrued in the respective reporting period, re-measured and paid out in the following year based on
actual achievement.
For instance, the amount accrued and the amount paid-out for the financial 2014-2015 were as follows:
Variable Remuneration

31/03/2015

Accrued in the reporting period

132 000 CHF

re-measured and paid-out

112 200 CHF

This Compensation Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 12th May 2016.

24 • Wockhardt Bio AG

Annual Report 2015-16 • 25

WOCKHARDT BIO AG

CONSOLIDATED AUDIT REPORT 2015 - 2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
in USD Mn

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Note

31.3.2016

31.3.2015

104.09
144.52
6.96
147.04
87.92
490.53

74.75
59.39
72.05
12.31
67.69
286.19

85.99
41.33
11.16
138.48

52.47
29.22
0.60
228.17
14.66
325.12

629.01

611.31

Assets

Note

1.4.201531.3.2016

1.4.201431.3.2015

Net sales from goods and services

4

417.95

406.28

Other operating income

5

in USD Mn

Total revenue
Change in inventory of finished and unfinished goods
Material expense

1.54

7.02

419.49

413.30

1.79

(2.29)

(156.92)

(166.29)

Personnel expense

6

(72.44)

(50.17)

Other operating expense

7

(140.57)

(130.79)

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets

15

(4.60)

(2.84)

Amortization of intangible assets

16

(4.68)

(5.00)

(377.42)

(357.39)

42.07

55.91

(4.84)

(21.01)

37.23

34.91

Total expenses

Cash and cash equivalents
Securities
Receivables from goods and services
Other short-term receivables
Advance receivable - related party
Inventories
Current assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Advance receivable – related party
Deferred income tax assets
Non-current assets

12
13
26
14

15
16
26
18

Total assets
Operating income
Financial income / (expenses)

8

Ordinary income
Extraordinary income / (loss)

0.19

Profit before income taxes
Income taxes
Profit

9

37.23

35.10

(8.27)

(8.50)

28.96

26.60

Basic and also diluted earnings per share (in USD):
Earnings per share
The notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements

0.59

0.57

Liabilities and equity
Short-term financial liabilities
Payables from goods and services
Other short-term liabilities
Short-term provisions
Accrued liabilities and deferred income
Current liabilities

17
19
20
22
21

49.64
57.92
22.89
31.24
0.75
162.44

109.11
61.72
20.25
24.29
0.13
215.50

Long-term financial liabilities
Long-term provisions
Deferred income tax liabilities
Non-current liabilities

17
22
18

73.38
0.07
2.16
75.61

96.05
2.33
1.70
100.09

56.21
50.22
60.54
(74.91)
298.90
390.96

51.03
42.57
1.84
(69.65)
269.94
295.73

629.01

611.31

Share capital
Legal reserves
Capital reserve
Currency translation adjustments
Retained earnings
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

23

The notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
in USD Mn

Profit for the year
+/- depreciation/amortization of tangible/intangible assets
+/- loss from impairment
+/- increase / decrease in value of securities
+/- increase/decrease of provisions
(including deferred income taxes) that do not affect the fund
+/- decrease / increase of inventories
+/- decrease / increase of other receivables
+/- increase / decrease of receivables from deliveries and services
+/- increase / decrease of payables from goods and services
+/- increase / decrease of other short-term liabilities and
accrued liabilities and deferred income

Note

15, 16

18, 22

1.4.201531.3.2016

1.4.201431.3.2015

28.96
9.28
(0.91)
3.45

26.60
7.84
0.19
(7.06)
17.85

(2.97)
86.47
(40.22)
(3.80)
(21.11)

Net cash flow from operating activities

59.15

3.52
11.39
(1.06)
(21.24)
(32.77)

in USD Mn

Share
capital

Legal
reserves

Capital
reserve

Currency
translation
adjustments

Balance at April 1, 2014
Distribution to shareholders (note 11)
Profit
Currency translation adjustments

51.03

42.57
-

1.84

(86.69)

Balance at March 31, 2015

51.03

42.57

5.18

7.65
-

Capital increase (note 23)
Share Premium (note 23)
Acquisition of CP Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
Profit
Currency translation adjustments

+/-

Inflows/outflows for investment (purchase) of tangible fixed assets
inflows/outflows from disposal
(selling)/purchase of financial assets (securities)
outflows for investment (purchase) of intangible assets

15

16

Net cash flow from investing activities
+/+/+/+/+/-

issuance / repayment of short-term financial liabilities
issuance / repayment of long-term financial liabilities
inflows from capital increase (including agio)
Acquisition of Subsidiary, net of cash acquired
distribution to shareholders

23
11

Total
equity

320.39
(77.05)
26.60

329.14
(77.05)
26.60
17.04

269.94

295.73

17.04
1.84

(69.65)

58.70

28.96
(5.26)

5.18
7.65
58.70
28.96
(5.26)

5.26

Balance at March 31, 2016
+/+/-

Retained
earnings

56.21

50.22

60.54

(74.91)

298.90

390.96

(15.10)
60.90

(7.02)
47.28

(16.79)

(2.23)

The acquisition of CP Pharmaceutical is a business combination under common control as all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled by
Wockhardt Limited, Mumbai. Therefore, the net assets taken over are valued at book values. The remaining amount of USD 58.7 Mn between
acquisition cost and the net assets at book values is recognized within Capital Reserve.

29.01

38.03

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(59.47)
(22.68)
12.83
15.76
-

(8.60)
(86.64)
(77.05)

(53.56)

(172.29)

The notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements.

1

General information
Wockhardt Bio AG (‘WBIO’ or ‘Company’) is a subsidiary of Wockhardt Ltd, Mumbai (India). The Company together
with its subsidiaries (collectively, ‘the Group’; see note 28) is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and
marketing of pharmaceutical products. The Group has three manufacturing plants.
The bearer shares of Wockhardt Bio AG are listed on BX Berne eXchange since December 19, 2013.

Net cash flow from financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

34.60

(129.00)

74.75
34.60
(5.26)
104.09

186.71
(129.00)
17.04
74.75

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 were authorized for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 20th May 2016.
2

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Exchange (losses) / gains on cash
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
The notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of Wockhardt Bio AG have been prepared in accordance with the complete
set of Swiss GAAP FER. They comply with the complementary recommendation for listed companies (Swiss GAAP
FER 31) and the requirements of the BX Berne eXchange. The Group has adopted Swiss GAAP FER 31 with effect of
April 1, 2015. The new rules had no impact on the consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet,
and consolidated cash flow statement of the Group. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. All financial information included in the consolidated financial statements and
notes to the consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollar (USD) and rounded to the nearest ten
thousand unless otherwise stated.
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2.2

Consolidation

2.2.1

Changes in the scope of consolidation
Wockhardt Bio AG has acquired the 100% shares of CP Pharmaceuticals Limited (CPP) from Wockhardt UK Holdings
Limited with effective date 1st April 2015 for GBP 10 Mn (USD 14.796 Mn). The activity of CPP is the manufacture and
sale of pharmaceutical products. As on 31st March 2015, the total assets of CPP stand at GBP 69.7 Mn (USD 103.1 Mn),
and the total equity stand at GBP 49.7 Mn (USD 73.5 Mn).

2.3.2

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.
2.3.3

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. The net assets taken over in an
acquisition are measured initially at fair value at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the newly valued net assets taken over is designated as
goodwill. At the date of the acquisition, the acquired goodwill is offset with equity. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is also offset in equity. Subsequent
adjustments to any contingent purchase consideration are recorded as an adjustment to the acquisition’s cost and to
goodwill. Adjustments to the fair values of the acquired net assets are recorded in the income statement in
subsequent periods.

Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. For purposes of the disclosure of the effects of a theoretical capitalization,
goodwill is treated as an asset of Wockhardt Bio AG and is carried in the Company’s functional currency.
The principal exchange rates versus the US dollar were as follows:

Intercompany transactions, balances, and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
2.2.3

Investments in associates
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. These are entities in which
Wockhardt Bio AG has significant influence and which are neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures of Wockhardt.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over these decisions (usually 20-50% of voting rights). Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognize Wockhardt's share of profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date.

2.2.4

Securities
The company excess cash is invested into regulated financial market (equity and bond), as part of the current assets,
are valued at actual values. If there is no actual value at hand they are valued at acquisition cost less impairment, if any.

2.3

Foreign currency translation

2.3.1

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in US dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
b) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and
c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity.
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to shareholders' equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognized in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

The profit for the year ended 31st March 2015 amounts to GBP 36.9 Mn (USD 59.3 Mn).
2.2.2

Transactions and balances

2.4

Ø 2015/16

March 31, 2016

Ø 2014/15

March 31, 2016

1

EUR

1.1038

1.1392

1.2562

1.0741

1

GBP

1.5029

1.4399

1.6064

1.4798

1

CHF

1.0257

1.0413

1.0708

1.0282

Revenue recognition and chargebacks
Revenue is recognized at the time product is shipped by the Group, which is when title passes. Allowances for
discounts, chargebacks, and rebates are recognized in the same period as the related sales. A significant portion of
products is distributed by independent pharmaceutical wholesalers; when a sale is initially recorded to a wholesaler,
the sale and resulting receivable are recorded at list price. However, experience indicates that most of these selling
prices will eventually be reduced to a lower, end-user contract price.
Chargebacks are difference in value between Wockhardt established WAC (Wholesale Acquisition Cost) and the
negotiated contract price extended to certain customers/distributors.
Therefore, at the time of the sale, an allowance is recorded for, and revenue is reduced by, the difference between the
list price and the estimated average end-user contract price. When the wholesaler ultimately sells the product, the
wholesaler charges the Group (chargeback) for the difference between the list price and the end-user contract price,
and such chargeback is offset against the initial estimated allowance.
Additionally, the Group also issues rebates to its customers based on the amount of purchases a customer has made or
the amount of product that has been sold by its customer. Estimated rebates are accrued as an allowance and reduce
revenues at the time of the initial sale, and are generally paid on a monthly basis. Accounts receivable are presented
net of such allowances.
To control credit exposure, the Group routinely monitors the creditworthiness of its customers, reviews outstanding
customer balances on a regular basis, and records allowances for bad debts as necessary. Additionally, the Group
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evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable based on the length of time the receivable is past due and the
anticipated future uncollectible amounts based on historical experience. Accounts receivable are charged off against
the allowance account when they are deemed uncollectible. The Group does not require customers to maintain
collateral.

2.7

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and current accounts with banks.
2.8

2.4.1

Receivables from goods and services are valued at par value less impairment, if any. A provision for impairment of
receivables from goods and services is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable from goods and services is impaired. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of provision against the doubtful debts allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognized in the income statement within “other operating expenses.” When a receivable from goods and
services is uncollectible, it is written off against the Bad Debts allowance account for receivables from goods and
services. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against “other operating expenses” in
the income statement.

Sale of Services
Revenues from services are recognized on completion of rendering of services.

2.4.3

Royalties

.

Royalties are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.
2.4.4

Receivables from goods and services

Sale of Goods
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
which coincides with dispatch of goods to customers. Revenues are recorded at invoice value, net of value added tax
(VAT)/duties, returns and trade discounts.

2.4.2

Cash and cash equivalents

2.9

Interest

Inventories
All inventories are valued at moving weighted average price other than finished goods and work in progress, which
are valued on quarterly moving average price. Finished goods and work in progress is computed based on respective
moving weighted average price of procured materials and appropriate share of labour and other manufacturing
overheads.

Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
2.5

Employee benefits

2.5.1

Pension obligations

Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost and net realizable value. Cost also comprises all charges incurred for
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Duties accrued on production or import of goods, as
applicable, is included in the valuation of finished goods.

The obligations of all Group Companies in respect of retirement, death and disability are based on local rules and
regulations in the respective countries. The obligation in respect of the pension plans of all Group Companies is with
the pension institution and not with the Group Companies except for Wockhardt France Holding where the Pension
Fund is maintained by the Group.

Inventories of stores and spare parts are valued at cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.
2.10

2.6

Fixed assets

Current and deferred income tax
The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether they are recorded in
excess of their recoverable amounts and where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, assets are
written down to the recoverable amount.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in equity.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Wockhardt Bio AG does not recognize deferred
income tax assets on unused tax losses.
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2.10.1

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The Group capitalizes
all costs relating to the acquisition and installation of fixed assets.
Depreciation is provided, using the straight line method, pro rata to the period of use of assets, at the rates mentioned
below or essentially based on the useful lives of the assets estimated by the management, whichever is higher. The
rates used by the Group are as follows:
Assets
Leasehold land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture & fixtures
Office equipment
Information technology equipment
Vehicles

Rates
Over the period of lease
1.63 - 3.34%
4.75 - 6.67%
6%
25%
20 - 33.33%
20 - 33.33%
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2.10.2

Finance lease assets are included in fixed assets and the capital elements of the leasing commitments are shown as
obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding
obligations and the interest element is charged against profit in proportion to the reducing capital element
outstanding. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of
equivalent owned assets.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
The cost relating to Intangible assets, which are acquired, are capitalized and amortized on a straight line basis up to
the period of three to ten years, which is based on their estimated useful life.
2.14
Generally the intangible assets (Intellectual property rights, market authorizations etc.) are amortized over a period of
10 years. However, there are instances where the useful life is considered less than 10 years by Group Companies. As
such useful life period is based on various factors such as the life cycle of the product, competitive environment,
forecast on market of the product, manufacturing plans of the Group etc. Wherever the foregoing factors strongly
justify a useful life of less than 10 years, a lesser period is considered for amortizing the intangible assets.

2.10.3

Payables from goods and services and other payables are recognized at par value.
2.15

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use, and
otherwise when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding. Development is the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or
design for the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, systems or
services prior to the commencement of commercial production or us.

2.16

Equity

Development Expenses on QIDP status products

2.16.1

Share capital

During the previous year, the Group had received Qualified Infectious Product (QIDP) status by US Food and Drug
Administration (US FDA) for two of its breakthrough drug discovery programme in anti-infective. Further during the
current year, the Group has received QIDP status for three more drugs. The Development Expenses for the year
amounting to USD 13.4 Mn pertaining to Group’s five new breakthrough drug discovery programme in the antiinfective space duly approved under QIDP by US FDA has been capitalized during the year and included under
‘Intangible Assets - Licenses in progress’ as at March 31, 2016.
2.11

Bearer shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
2.16.2

Impairment of assets
For purposes of the disclosure of the effects of a theoretical capitalization, acquired goodwill is amortized over five
years and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed.
In case of a disposal, acquired goodwill offset against equity at an earlier date is considered at original cost to
determine the profit or loss recognized in the income statement.

Borrowings
2.17
Borrowings are initially recognized at par value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognized in the income statement over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

2.13

Goodwill offset in equity
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition of a subsidiary over the Group’s share of the newly valued
net assets taken over. At the date of the acquisition, the acquired goodwill is offset against equity.

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for a possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
2.12

Provisions
Provisions for contingent purchase considerations, restructuring costs, legal cases, warranties, and others are
recognized when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments.

Research and development (R&D)
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is carried
forward when its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured. Any expenditure carried forward is
amortized over the period of expected future sales from the related project, not exceeding ten years.

2.10.4

Payables from goods and services

Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Government grants
Capital grants (e.g. for research and development, capital purchase of equipment and buildings, technology and
innovation) are credited to a deferred income account and depreciated over the useful life of the asset by equal annual
installments. Revenue grants are credited to income in the period to which they relate.

3

Use of estimates
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes
estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results.
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4

Net sales from goods and services

4.1

Information about Primary Segments

in USD Mn

The Group is primarily engaged in the pharmaceutical business which is considered as the only reportable business
segment.
4.2

Information about Secondary Segments
Net sales by regions of destination

In USD Mn

2015/16

2014/15

143.88
245.41
28.66
417.95

169.91
213.43
22.94
406.28

USA
Europe
Rest of the world
Total net sales by regions of destination

During the year, the Company parent, Wockhardt Limited (WLtd) has undergone inspections at its L1-Chikalthana,
Aurangabad manufacturing facility by UK MHRA and have received communication confirming the closure of the
inspection and issuance of an unrestricted GMP certificate. Accordingly, Supplies have been resumed from L1 facility
to UK Market. US FDA has also recently completed inspections of WLtd.’s manufacturing unit at Ankleshwar, Gujrat and
Shendra, Aurangabad and made some observations for which appropriate reply has been submitted. Shendra
manufacturing unit is a new facility supplying to India, UK & Irish market. Presently, there are no supplies of products
from the said facility to the US market. Waluj Facility received the Establishment Inspection Report (EIR) from US FDA.
The Company’s on-going efforts towards remediation and compliance measures for its manufacturing facilities
continue to be in place.
5

Other operating income

in USD Mn

2015/16

2014/15

0.19
0.05
0.07
0.91
0.32
1.54

(0.84)
(0.16)
0.07
7.06
0.89
7.02

Foreign exchange variance
Profit on sale of investments ( Net )
Profit on sale of assets (net )
Gain on Investments
Miscellaneous income
Total other operating income

6
in USD Mn

2015/16

2014/15

61.92
3.55
1.92
5.05
72.44

43.39
0.85
0.72
5.21
50.17

Salaries and wages
Pension Expense
Staff welfare & training expenses
Other Personnel Expenses
Total personnel expense

Nominal Renounced
value
use

Balance Accumulation
sheet
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0.08
0.08

-

0.08
0.08

Balance Result from ECR within
sheet
personnel expense

2015/16

31.3.2015

-

0.09
0.09

2015/16 2014/15
-

-

Contributions
accrued

Change to
previous year

31.3.2016 31.3.2015

Pension benefit
expenses within
personnel expense

2015/16

2014/15

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3.55
3.55

0.85
0.85

Other operating expense

in USD Mn
Clinical trial expenses
Consultancy charges
Distribution cost on domestic sales
General expenses
Research & development expenses
Insurance
Travelling expenses
Rent, rates and taxes
Commission on sales
Others
Total other operating expense

9

31.3.2016 31.3.2016 31.3.2016
Employer contribution reserves (ECR)
Patronage funds/pension institutions
Pension institutions
Total

7

2015/16
3.41
20.05
6.10
5.49
56.84
2.57
2.17
2.61
2.19
39.14
140.57

2014/15
14.08
14.63
9.35
4.74
39.95
3.07
1.95
2.99
1.67
38.36
130.79

2015/16
(1.73)
(0.03)
(1.60)
(1.48)
(4.84)

2014/15
(6.69)
0.73
(0.04)
(15.01)
(21.01)

2015/16
3.96
4.31
8.27

2014/15
9.18
(0.68)
8.50

Financial income / (expenses)

in USD Mn
Interest expense on term loans
Interest received
Financial expenses and bank charges
Exchange loss
Total financial income / (expenses)

The pension expense is summarised as follows:
in USD Mn

31.3.2016
Economic benefit / obligation
and pension expenses
Patronage funds / pension institutions
Pension institutions without
surplus/deficit
Pension institutions with surplus
Pension institutions with deficit
Pension institutions without own assets
Pension Funds foreign country
Total

8

Personnel expense

Economical
share of
the Group

Surplus/
deficit

Income tax (credit)/expense

in USD Mn
Deferred income tax (credit)/expense (note 18)
Current income tax expense
Total income tax (credit)/expense
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Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Wockhardt Bio AG’s tax rate for FY 2015/16 & 2014/15
2015/16
37.23
6.71
(3.41)
1.06
0.58
0.40
2.39
(0.17)
0.68
8.24
8.24

Accounting Profit before Income tax
Average applied income tax rate of 18% (16.9%)
Adjustment of tax charge in respect of prior periods
Effect of higher tax rates
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Effect of capital allowances & depreciation
Not recognized tax losses in the current year
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses
Other adjustments
At the effective income tax rate of 22.1% (24.2%)
Income tax expense reported in the income statement

10

2014/15
35.10
5.94
(1.19)
1.36
0.85
0.24
(0.06)
1.36
8.50
8.50

14

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated on the basis of the profit for the year and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as
treasury shares. The Company does not have any categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Profit for the year (in USD Mn):
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year:
Bearer shares
Basic and also diluted earnings per share (in USD):
Earnings per share
11

2014/15
26.60

49'448'000

46'948'000

0.59

0.57

The distribution to shareholders in 2014/15 out of retained earnings was Nil

Dividend paid out of
retained earnings
Dividend paid out of capital
contribution reserves
12

Payment per share

USD Mn

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

51'948'000

46'948'000

-

(1.64)

-

(77.05)

51'948'000

46'948'000

-

-

-

-

Receivables from goods and services

in USD Mn
Receivables from goods and services
Third party
Related party
Total
Provision for doubtful debts
Total receivables from goods and services
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31.3.2016

31.3.2015

146.23
0.45
146.68
(2.16)
144.52

70.04
2.89
72.93
(0.88)
72.05

in USD Mn
Raw materials
Packing materials & spares
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Total inventories
Less: Inventory provision
Total inventories - net
15

31.3.2016

31.3.2015

6.96
6.96

12.31
12.31

31.3.2016
27.03
5.89
2.15
78.22
113.29
(25.37)
87.92

31.3.2015
16.23
2.14
0.49
81.26
100.12
(32.43)
67.69

Other
tangible
assets

Total
tangible
assets

Inventories

Tangible assets
Plant
and
equipment

Land
and
buildings

Cost
Balance at April 1, 2014
Additions
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2015
Acquisition of CP Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
Additions
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2016

41.38
3.83
(3.36)
(4.88)
36.97
41.79
6.75
(0.21)
85.30

32.36
1.62
(0.19)
(3.09)
30.70
5.50
0.44
0.51
37.15

14.48
8.59
(3.57)
(0.01)
19.49
10.59
12.42
(4.37)
(0.49)
37.64

0.06
0.06
0.01
(0.01)
0.06

88.28
14.04
(7.12)
(7.98)
87.22
57.89
19.61
(4.38)
(0.19)
160.16

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at April 1, 2014
Depreciation
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2015
Acquisition of CP Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
Depreciation
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2016

32.98
2.26
(3.55)
(3.68)
28.02
29.78
3.98
(0.11)
61.67

6.96
0.58
(0.86)
6.68
5.08
0.62
0.06
12.44

-

0.05
0.05
0.01
0.06

39.99
2.84
(3.55)
(4.54)
34.75
34.87
4.60
(0.05)
74.17

Net book values
Balance at April 1, 2014
Balance at March 31, 2015
Balance at March 31, 2016

8.40
8.95
23.63

25.40
24.02
24.72

14.48
19.49
37.64

0.01
0.01
-

48.29
52.47
85.99

in USD Mn

Distribution to shareholders

Shares outstanding

Other short-term receivables

in USD Mn
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Related party
Other
Total other short-term receivables

Earnings per share

2015/16
28.96

13

Equipment
under
construction
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16

Intangible assets

in USD Mn

Licences
and
trademarks

Computer
software

Licences
in progress

Total
intangible
assets

Cost
Balance at April 1, 2014
Additions
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2015
Additions
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2016

58.53
0.41
(0.74)
(2.23)
55.97
0.48
0.46
56.91

6.86
0.17
7.03
0.41
7.44

47.67
2.00
(0.37)
(0.06)
49.24
16.54
(0.63)
65.16

113.06
2.58
(1.11)
(2.29)
112.24
17.44
(0.63)
0.46
129.51

Accumulated amortization
Balance at April 1, 2014
Amortization
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2015
Amortization
Disposals
Exchange differences
Balance at March 31, 2016

29.43
4.26
(0.74)
(2.31)
30.64
4.25
0.46
35.35

4.89
0.74
5.63
0.43
6.06

46.75
46.75
0.02
46.77

81.07
5.00
(0.74)
(2.31)
83.02
4.68
0.48
88.18

Net book values
Balance at April 1, 2014
Balance at March 31, 2015
Balance at March 31, 2016

29.10
25.33
21.56

1.97
1.40
1.38

0.92
2.49
18.39

31.99
29.22
41.33

17

covered under CDR and is being rescheduled. The amount becoming due in the next 12 months per the repayment schedule has
been disclosed under Loan - third party USD 9.37 Mn (Previous year - USD 62.5 Mn.). The loan carries an interest of 3 months USD
LIBOR plus 2.15% p.a. and is repayable in 1 quarterly instalment by May 2016.
Assets pledged
1

Term loan of EUR 68.2 Mn [Previous Year - EUR 80.94 Mn] availed by Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S. is secured by pledge of
shares of Negma Group of companies. The loan with interest of 6 months EUR LIBOR plus 1.75% p.a. is repayable in 12 half
yearly instalments by November 2020.

2

Term loan of 15.0 Mn [Previous Year - EUR 15 Mn ] availed by Wockpharma Ireland Limited is secured by pledge of shares of
Pinewood Laboratories Limited, all movable and immovable properties of Pinewood Laboratories Limited situated at Unit at
M50, Business Park, Ballymount, Dublin 12 and Deerpark, Ballymacarbry, Co. Waterford by way of first fixed charge. Further
this term loan is also secured by fixed and floating charges on all other assets of Wockpharma Ireland Limited & Pinewood
Laboratories Limited.
The loan carries an interest of 3 months EURIBOR plus 3.25% p.a. and is repayable in 6 half yearly instalments commencing
from July 2016.

3

Borrowings

in USD Mn
Current
Bank overdrafts
Bank loans
Related party
Others
Total current borrowings
Non-current
Bank loans
Total non-current borrowings
Total borrowings

31.3.2016

31.3.2015

17.30
30.78
1.37
0.19
49.64

28.83
78.87
1.41
109.11

73.38
73.38
123.02

96.05
96.05
205.16

A)

Loan availed by Wockhardt Bio AG of USD 9.37 Mn [Previous Year – USD 71.9 Mn] is secured as under :
a) first ranking pari passu charge on immovable properties of Wockhardt Limited situated at Kadaiya in Daman and
Baddi in Himachal Pradesh
b) second ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the current assets, movables, inventories and
book debts of Wockhardt Limited.

B)

Further, out of loan of USD 9.37 Mn (Previous Year - USD 71.9 Mn), in addition to aforesaid security, is also secured by:
a) subservient charge on movable properties of Wockhardt Limited situated at Bhimpore in Daman, Ankleshwar, L-1,
D-4 Chikhalthana and Biotech Park, Waluj in Aurangabad (except book debts and current assets)
b) subservient charge on movable properties of Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at Shendra
in Aurangabad.
Further, out of loan of USD 9.37 Mn (Previous Year - USD 62.5 Mn), security has been created in respect of term loan
of USD 3.79 Mn in addition to aforesaid security, as follows:
(i) subservient charge on movable properties of Wockhardt Limited situated at Bhimpore in Daman, Ankleshwar,
L-1, D-4, Chikhalthana and Biotech Park, Waluj in Aurangabad (except book debts and current assets)
(ii) subservient charge on movable properties of Wockhardt Infrastructure Development Limited situated at
Shendra in Aurangabad (WIDL).

4

Bank overdraft position includes the overdraft of Wockhardt UK Ltd. amounting at GBP 12 Mn (USD 17.3 Mn) [(Previous Year GBP 11.14 Mn) (USD 16.48 Mn)]. The same is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the undertaking.
Wockhardt UK Ltd., together with Pinewood Healthcare Ltd., Wockhardt UK (Holdings) Ltd., CP Pharmaceuticals Ltd., CP
Pharmaceuticals Ltd. and Wallis Group Ltd. and its subsidiaries, have provided an unlimited cross-charge to secure the group
borrowings.

5

As per financial year-end there were open guarantees and bid-/performance bonds by Credit Suisse to third parties secured
by a general deed of pledge in the amount of USD 0.9 Mn (Previous Year USD 1.06 Mn).

6

During the year Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Limited, indirect subsidiary of the Company, acquired some equipment
through Capital lease USD 0.08 Mn (Previous Year Nil) and will be re payable by 17 monthly instalments by August 2017.

Bank loans mature until 2020 and bear an average interest rate of 2.9% annually.
Outstanding Loan of USD 9.37 Mn
Wockhardt Bio AG has an outstanding loan of USD 9.37 Mn (Previous year - USD 71.9 Mn). The said loan has been comprehensively
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in USD Mn
Balance at April 1,
Deferred income tax credit/(expense) (note 9)
Balance at March 31,

31.3.2015
22.14
(9.18)
12.96

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arise from temporary differences between the tax bases and their carrying amounts
in the Group’s financial statements in the following balance sheet items:
in USD Mn
Provisions
Receivables from goods and services & others
Tangible assets
Total balance March 31,

31.3.2016
7.94
3.22
(2.16)
9.00

31.3.2015
13.70
0.96
(1.70)
22.14

Deferred tax assets in the amount of USD 1.3 Mn (Previous Year - USD 0.9 Mn) on current losses of Wockhardt Bio AG standalone financials have not been considered above.
The tax rates applied for the calculation of the deferred income taxes are US 38.04%, UK 20% and France 33.33%.

19

Payables from goods and services

in USD Mn
Payables from goods and services
Third party
Related party
Total payables from goods and services

31.3.2016
41.29
16.63
57.92

11.63
4.66
(10.56)
(0.23)
(0.43)
5.07
6.31
(2.25)
(3.56)
5.56

2.72
46.71
(33.65)
(0.23)
15.54
37.92
(35.88)
17.58

0.54
5.93
(2.25)
(0.01)
(0.46)
3.75
7.64
(3.22)
8.16

0.78
0.21
(0.37)
(0.19)
(0.16)
0.27
0.04
(0.06)
(0.25)
-

2.29
0.30
(0.11)
(0.48)
2.00
(2.00)
-

17.95
57.80
(46.94)
(0.43)
(1.76)
26.62
51.92
(43.41)
(3.81)
31.31

11.57
0.06

2.72
-

0.48
0.06

0.76

1.94
0.35

16.71
1.24

Whereof at March 31, 2015
Current Portion
Non-Current Portion

5.07
-

15.54
-

3.68
0.07

0.27

2.00

24.29
2.33

Whereof at March 31, 2016
Current Portion
Non-Current Portion

5.57
-

17.58
-

8.09
0.07

-

-

31.24
0.07

Carrying amount as per April 1, 2014
Creation/Addition
Utilization
Release
Exchange differences
Carrying amount as per March 31, 2015
Creation/Addition
Utilization
Release
Exchange differences
Carrying amount as per March 31, 2016
Whereof at April 1, 2014
Current Portion
Non-Current Portion

31.3.2015
27.64
34.08
61.72

23
20

Other short-term liabilities

in USD Mn
VAT, social tax & other similar payables to government
Other liabilities
Total other short-term liabilities

21

31.3.2016
2.72
20.17
22.89

31.3.2015
1.30
18.95
20.25

46 • Wockhardt Bio AG

Equity

The issued share capital of the Company consists of 51‘948‘000 (Previous year 46‘948‘000) bearer shares with a par value of CHF 1
each. All issued shares are fully paid. The Company has no conditional capital.
In accordance with the stock-option agreement dated August 10th, 2015, the Chairman of the Board of Directors on September
13th, 2015 exercised the option to subscribe 5’000’000 new bearer shares of Wockhardt Bio AG at the prevailing market price of
CHF 2.51 per share. Therefore, the share capital increased by USD 5.18 Mn and the share premium by USD 7.65 Mn (net of
transaction costs).
The Company’s statutory or legal reserves that may not be distributed amounted to USD 24.86 Mn (Previous year - USD 24.86 Mn)
at March 31, 2016.

Accrued liabilities and deferred income

in USD Mn
Interest accrued & due on security deposit
Interest accrued but not due
Total accrued liabilities and deferred income

Total

31.3.2016
12.96
(3.96)
9.00

The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

in USD Mn

Other
provisions

31.3.2015
14.66
(1.70)
12.96

Restructuring
provisions

31.3.2016
11.16
(2.16)
9.00

Provision for
commission/
rebate

in USD Mn
Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), net

Provisions
Provision for
benefit
obligations

22

Deferred income tax

Provision
for taxes

18

31.3.2016
0.00
0.75
0.75

31.3.2015
0.03
0.10
0.13

23.1

Goodwill from acquisitions

Goodwill from acquisitions is fully offset against equity at the date of acquisition. The impact of the theoretical capitalization and
amortization of goodwill is disclosed below:
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in USD Mn

Cost

Accumulated
amortisation

Theoretical
net book
value

26
a)

Balance at April 1, 2014

195.56

195.46

0.10

Additions

-

-

-

Amortization charge

-

0.05

(0.05)

195.56

195.51

0.05

-

-

-

-

0.05

(0.05)

195.56

195.56

0.00

Balance at March 31, 2015
Additions
Amortization charge
Balance at March 31, 2016
Impact on income statement
in USD Mn

In Wockhardt Limited, more than 5% of total shares are held by -“Themisto Trustee Company Private Limited which holds these
shares in its capacity as the trustee of Habil Khorakiwala Trust which in turn holds these shares in its capacity as the partner of the
partnership firm Humuza Consultants - 59.63%”.
Affiliated Companies
Wockhardt UK Holdings Ltd., United Kingdom
Wockhardt Europe Limited, British Virgin Islands

b)
2015/16

2014/15

Profit for the year according to the consolidated income statement

28.96

26.60

Amortization of goodwill

(0.05)

(0.05)

Theoretical profit for the year including amortization of goodwill

28.91

26.55

31.3.2016

31.3.2015

390.96

295.73

0.05

0.10

in USD Mn
Equity according to the balance sheet
Theoretical capitalization of goodwill (net book value)
Amortization of goodwill

(0.05)

(0.05)

Theoretical equity including net book value of goodwill

390.96

295.78

Equity according to balance sheet

390.96

295.73

62%

48%

Theoretical equity including net book value of goodwill as % of total assets

390.96

295.78

Theoretical equity including net book value of goodwill as % of total assets

62%

48%

Equity as % of total assets

Contingent liabilities

c)

One of the customers of a subsidiary of the Group has brought a claim relating to a commercial dispute over a contract which is sub
judice. The financial impact of the claim, if any, that may result from ultimate resolutions of the proceedings, is currently not
ascertainable.
The Group does not believe that information about the amount sought by the claimant would be meaningful with respect to the
legal proceedings. This is due to a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the stage of proceedings, the entitlement of
parties to appeal a decision and clarity as to theories of liability, damages and governing law.
Commitments

Capital expenditures for the purchase of property, plant and equipment contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet
incurred amount to USD 10.9 Mn.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:
in USD Mn
No later than 1 year

31.3.2016

31.3.2015

0.31

0.87

Later than 1 year, no later than 5 years

0.55

3.09

Total commitments

0.86

3.96
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Key Managerial personnel:
Mr. Adrian John Ashurst
Mr. Ajay Sahni
Dr. Habil F. Khorakiwala
Dr. Murtaza Khorakiwala

Transactions with related parties during the year
in USD Mn
Holding company
Sale of Raw Materials
Outlicensing Fees paid
R & D Services
Purchase of Finished goods
Interest expenses
Management Fee paid
Reimbursement of expenses
Recovery of expenses
Cross charges for Capital Expenditure
Loans & advance paid
Guarantee fees expense
Advances paid against supplies & services
Dividends paid
Key managerial personnel
Remuneration paid

Impact on balance sheet

25

Related party relationships where transactions have taken place during the year

Wockhardt Bio AG is an 86% (Previous year: 95%) owned subsidiary of Wockhardt Ltd, India (`Holding company').

Cost

24

Related party transactions

2015/16

2014/15

21.65
11.16
43.45
0.68
2.40
2.38
4.90
0.32
7.01
-

0.01
29.00
38.88
0.09
0.56
0.60
1.77
11.53
0.48
108.66
73.20

3.74

0.70

31.3.2016

31.3.2015

147.04
0.45
(16.63)
(1.37)

228.17
2.89
(26.74)
(1.41)

Related party balances
in USD Mn
Related party balances
Amount receivable from Wockhardt Limited-advances
Amount receivable from Wockhardt Limited- debtors
Payable to Wockhardt Ltd. - Creditors
Payable to Wockhardt Ltd. - Loan
Loan Payable to fellow subsidiary [Wockhardt Europe Limited]
27

Subsequent events

One of the customers of a subsidiary of the Company has brought a claim relating to a commercial dispute over a contract which is
sub judice. The financial impact of the claim, if any, that may result from ultimate resolutions of the proceedings, is currently not
ascertainable.
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Subsidiaries

STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT 2015 - 2016
Registered
capital

Activity

Company

Belgium
Negma Benelux S.A.

Group ownership
and voting rights
31.3.2016

31.3.2015

T

EUR

74'400

100%

100%

S
PS
S

GBP
GBP
GBP

50'000
2’432’549
100'000

100%
100%
100%

100%
0%
100%

France
Wockhardt France (Holdings) S.A.S.
Niverpharm S.A.S.
Laboratoires Pharma 2000 S.A.S.
Laboratoires Negma S.A.S.
Phytex S.A.S.

H
T
S
S
D

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

60'100'000
160'000
182'400
74'400
1'071'000

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Germany
Z & Z Service GmbH

D

EUR

3'625'000

100%

100%

H
PS

EUR
EUR

10'001'000
373'291

100%
100%

100%
100%

Mexico
Wockhardt Farmaceutica S.A. DE C.V.
Wockhardt Services S.A. DE C.V.

S
C

MXN
MXN

36'867'236
50'000

100%
100%

100%
100%

Russia
Wockhardt Bio (R)

S

RUB

5’150’000

100%

0%

Switzerland
CP Pharma (Schweiz) AG

S

CHF

250'000

100%

100%

H
PS
R
S

USD
USD
USD
USD

1'100
1
1
2'000'000

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

England & Wales
Wockhardt UK Limited
CP Pharmaceuticals Limited(*)
Pinewood Healthcare Limited

Ireland
Wockpharma Ireland Limited
Pinewood Laboratories Limited

USA
Wockhardt Holding Corp.
Morton Grove Pharmaceuticals Inc.
MGP Inc.
Wockhardt USA LLC.
Activity Codes
H
T
S
P
C
R
D

=
=
=
=
=
=
=

Holding
Trading
Sales
Production
Services / Consultancy
Research / Clinical trial
Dormant
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Beside the above Wockhardt Bio Pty Ltd. and Wockhardt Bio Ltd. have been incorporated in Australia &
New Zealand with an objective of trading, manufacturing, selling, marketing, R&D of Pharmaceutical
products as 100% owned subsidiaries on 19th august, 2015 & 11th November, 2015 respectively.
Wockhardt Bio Pty Ltd., Australia and Wockhardt Bio Ltd, New Zealand are yet to commence the business.
(*) Shareholding split into 1’862’549 Ordinary A shares of GBP 1.00 each and 570’000 Ordinary shares of
GBP 1.00 each.
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STATUTORY AUDITED ACCOUNTS
Balance Sheet as per March 31,

Current assets
Cash and bank balances
Short term assets with market value
Prepayments - third parties
Advances - shareholders
Advances - subsidiaries
Accounts receivable - third parties
Accounts receivable - shareholders
Accounts receivable - subsidiaries
Receivable VAT
Other receivables
Inventories
Total current assets

Balance Sheet as per March 31,
2016

2015

CHF

CHF

37'592'421
0
1'158'490
141'206'767
10'105'832
12'095'788
436'308
122'302'601
0
91'991
6'584'934
331'575'132

23'803'986
57'763'453
1'987'205
0
0
10'683'619
2'813'008
87'576'605
53'106
157'103
7'371'741
192'209'827

Tangible assets
Accumulated depreciation
Tangible assets net
Capitalized Work in Progress
Licences and trade marks
Accumulated amortisation
Licences and trade marks net
Intangible assets under development
Total fixed assets
Total assets
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2015

CHF

CHF

Liabilities
Accounts payable - third parties
Accounts payable - shareholders
Accounts payable - subsidiaries
Advances from customers
Payable VAT
Loan - third party - interest bearing
Loans - group companies
Accrued expenses
Accrued taxes
Total short term liabilities

13'459'787
15'969'421
40'409'257
481'808
286'010
9'002'848
1'313'604
37'960'167
70'082
118'952'984

6'235'122
25'991'619
29'599'221
646'258
0
72'794'644
1'367'328
38'400'320
3'618'094
178'652'605

Loan - third party - interest bearing
Total long term liabilities
Total liabilities

0
0
118'952'984

9'118'125
9'118'125
187'770'730

51'948'000

46'948'000

23'514'662
1'691'757
25'206'419

16'140'087
1'691'757
17'831'843

23'474'000

23'474'000

318'105'335
-19'341'454
298'763'880

306'533'432
11'571'903
318'105'335

399'392'299

406'359'178

518'345'282

594'129'909

Share capital
Fixed assets
Investments
Financial Assets - shareholders
Financial Assets - subsidiaries

2016

146'374'316
0
0
146'374'316

132'507'247
228'167'961
14'445'138
375'120'346

90'699
-63'699
27'000

68'949
-49'852
19'097

Statutory retained earnings
General Reserves

2'521'882

258'853

Profit carried forward
Profit/( Loss ) of the year
Retained earnings

46'905'540
-26'264'679
20'640'861

47'068'219
-22'472'775
24'595'444

17'206'091

1'926'342

186'770'150

401'920'082

518'345'282

594'129'909

Statutory Capital Reserves
Capital contribution reserve
Other Capital Reserves

Total shareholder's equity
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity
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2016

2015

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,

CHF

CHF

Revenues
Sales export
Fee for service/Royalty paid
Bad debts
Total revenues

246'515'917
-951'695
-2'146'410
243'417'812

249'356'065
-1'559'244
-15'575
247'781'247

1

Operating expenses
Cost of goods, materials and freight sold
Selling and distribution expenses
Export costs
Employee costs
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Research and development costs
Legal and consultancy costs
Trade mark costs
Management fees
Travel expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

169'525'579
3'876'402
139'353
5'048'656
1'905
784'693
54'909'636
14'221'938
290'912
402'820
262'960
10'099'600
4'152'777
263'717'231

154'314'128
3'051'440
185'135
1'481'142
-932
1'166'278
50'450'741
7'995'257
1'534'308
373'148
235'798
9'592'274
3'899'491
234'278'208

2

Net profit / (loss) from operations
Financial Income/Expenses
Financial income
Interest income - third party
Interest income - intercompany
Exchange gains
Gain on investments
Total financial income
Financial expenses
Interest charges - third party
Interest and guarantee charges - intercompany
Bank charges
Exchange losses
Total financial expenses
Total financial result
Net Profit/(loss) for the year before extraordinary items and tax
Loss from sale of assets
Extraordinary Loss
Net Profit/(loss) before tax
Direct taxes

-20'299'419

13'503'039

21'771
107'345
0
88'918
218'034

51'685
158'460
829'079
6'591'885
7'631'109

1'141'111
316'381
302'300
770'436
2'530'228
-2'312'194
-22'611'612
0
0

2'495'048
769'787
383'548
5'124'401
8'772'784
-1'141'674
12'361'365
-59
-170'566

-22'611'612

12'190'740

3'270'158

-618'837

-19'341'454

11'571'903

2015

CHF

CHF

General information
These financial statements of Wockhardt Bio AG, Grafenauweg 6, CH-6300 Zug were prepared according to the
provisionsof the Swiss Law on Accounting and Financial Reporting (32nd title of the Swiss Code of Obligations). Where
not prescribed by law, the significant accounting and valuation principles applied are described below. For comparison
purposes, the previous year was adjusted to the new structure of the 32nd title of the Swiss Code of Obligations.
Functional currency
Wockhardt Bio AG accounting currency is USD. The Income Statement has been translated into CHF at the annual average
rate. The Balance Sheet has been translated into CHF at year end rate with the exception of investments and shareholders'
equity, which are translated at historical rates. Currency conversion differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements are recognized in the income statement (loss) or are deferred (gain). Accordingly in the current year
currency conversion gain of CHF 26.18 Mn (Prior year CHF 29.6 Mn) has been considered under the position Accrued
Expenses in the Balance Sheet.
Company used the following exchange rates for translating financials in CHF from USD
Average rate - CHF/USD : 1.025
Closing rate - CHF/USD : 1.041

3

Development expenses on QIDP status products
During the previous year, the Company had received Qualified Infectious Disease Product (QIDP) status by US Food and
Drug Administration (US FDA) for two of its breakthrough drug discovery programme in anti-infective. Further during the
current year, the Company has received QIDP status for three more drugs. The Development Expenses for the year
amounting to USD 13.4 Mn (CHF 13.07 Mn) pertaining to Company’s five new breakthrough drug discovery programme
in the anti-infective space duly approved under QIDP by US FDA has been capitalised during the year and included under
‘Intangible Assets under Development’ as at March 31, 2016.

4

Research and development (R&D)
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is carried forward
when its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured. Any expenditure carried forward is amortized over
the period of expected future sales from the related project, not exceeding ten years.
The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use, and
otherwise when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding. Development is the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or
design for the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, systems or services
prior to the commencement of commercial production or us.
Some examples of Development Expenses Capitalised: Registration of the Product fee, Bio Studies Legal Charges &
related Clinical Trials.
Some examples of Research Expenses: Stores & Consumables, Fuel & Gas, Calibration expenses for Research &
Development activities, Quality Samples costs, etc.

5
Profit/ (Loss ) of the year

2016

Fixed assets, depreciation / amortization and impairment
Tangible assets:
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment loss if any. The Company
capitalizes all costs relating to the acquisition and installation of fixed assets.
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2016

2015

CHF

CHF

The carrying amounts of fixed assets and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether they
are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts and where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, assets are written down to the recoverable amount.

9

Intangible assets:
Intangible assets are amortized over a period of 3 - 15 years, which are based on their useful lives.

10

The intellectual Property Rights, Brands and Product Licenses are generally depreciated over a period of 10 years;
however wherever the useful life is less than 10 years the depreciation period is reduced accordingly.
6

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost also includes all charges incurred for
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Duties accrued on production or import of goods, as
applicable, is included in the valuation of finished goods.
Inventories of stores and spare parts are valued at cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.
Sale of Goods
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, which
coincides with dispatch of goods to customers. Revenues are recorded at invoice value, net of value added tax
(VAT)/duties, returns and trade discounts.
Sale of Services
Revenues from services are recognized on completion of rendering of services.
Royalties
Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.
Interest
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
8

2016

2015

CHF

CHF

Head count
The number of full time positions in the company on an annual average has been less than 50.
Investments
CP Pharma (Schweiz) AG
Incorporated in Switzerland
250 Registered shares of CHF 1'000.00
100% share in capital and voting rights

250'000

250'000

83'491

0

2'666'865

2'666'865

3'668

3'668

1'836'445

1'836'445

30'295'509

30'295'509

123'508

123'508

146'838

146'838

11'013'787
3’370’574

0
0

Inventories
All inventories are valued at moving weighted average price other than finished goods, which are valued on quarterly
moving average price. Finished goods and Work in progress is computed based on respective moving weighted average
price of procured materials and appropriate share of labour and other manufacturing overheads.

7

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,

Leases
Operating leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the lease term are
classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss Account on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Finance Lease
The assets are included in fixed assets and the capital elements of the leasing commitments are shown as obligations
under finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding obligations
and the interest element is charged against profit in proportion to the reducing capital element outstanding. Assets held
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the useful lives of equivalent owned assets.
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Wockhardt Bio ( R ) LLC.
Incorporated in Russia on 25th August 2015
5`150'000 Registered shares of Russian Roubles 1.00 each
100% share in capital and voting rights
Wockhardt Farmaceutica SA DE CV
Incorporated in Mexico
36'867'236 Ordinary shares of MXN 1.00
100% share in capital and voting rights
Wockhardt Services S.A. DE C.V.
Incorporated in Mexico
50'000 Ordinary shares of MXN1.00
100% share in capital and voting rights
Wockhardt France (Holding) S.A.S.
Incorporated in France
601'000 Registered shares of EUR 100
100% share in capital and voting rights
Wockhardt Holding Corp.
Incorporated in Delaware, USA
1'100 shares of Common Stock of USD 1.00
100% share in capital and voting rights
Wockhardt UK Limited
Incorporated in the United Kingdom
50'000 Ordinary shares of GBP 1.00
100% share in capital and voting rights
Pinewood Healthcare Limited
Incorporated in the United Kingdom
100'000 Ordinary shares of GBP 1.00
100% share in capital and voting rights
CP Pharmaceuticals Limited
Incorporated in the United Kingdom
1'862'549 Ordinary A shares of GBP 1.00
570'000 Ordinary shares of GBP 1.00 3'370'574 0
100% share in capital and voting rights
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Wockpharma Ireland Limited
Incorporated in the Republic of Ireland
10'001'000 Ordinary shares of EUR 1.00
50'000'000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares
of EUR 1.00 each
100% share in capital and voting rights
Z & Z Service GmbH
Incorporated in Germany
Nominal capital EUR 25'000.00
100% share in capital and voting rights

2016

2015

CHF

CHF

Proposed appropriation of available earnings and capital contribution reserve

Proposed appropriation of available earnings
Profit carried forward
Profit / (Loss) of the year

16'098'630

16'098'630

80'485'000

80'485'000

1

1

Available earnings

Dividend
Allocation to Legal reserves
Balance to be carried forward

Besides the above Wockhardt Bio Pty Ltd., Wockhardt Bio Ltd. have been incorporated in Australia & New Zealand with an
objective of trading, manufacturing, selling, marketing, R&D of Pharmaceutical products as 100% owned subsidiaries on
19th August, 2015 & 11th November, 2015 respectively. Wockhardt Bio Pty Ltd., Australia and Wockhardt Bio Ltd., New
Zealand are yet to commence the business.

Proposed appropriation of capital contribution reserve
Capital contribution reserve as of March 31,

Assets pledged

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting to carry forward the capital
contribution reserve as shown in the table below.

As per financial year end there were open guarantees and bid-/performance
bonds by Credit Suisse to third parties secured by a general deed of pledge in
the amount of
12

871'313

1'041'404

Loan

2014

CHF

CHF

318'105'335
-19'341'454

306'533'432
11'571'903

2 98'763'880

318'105'335

298'763'880

318'105'335

298'763'880

318'105'335

23'514'662

16'140'087

23'514'662

16'140'087

23'514'662

16'140'087

The Board of Directors proposes to the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, to carry forward
retained earnings as shown in the table below.

Total

11

2015

Dividend payment out of capital contribution reserve
Balance to be carried forward
Total

Wockhardt Bio AG has an outstanding loan of USD 9.37 Mn (CHF 9.00 Mn) [Previous year USD 71.8 Mn (CHF 69.8 Mn)]. The
whole amount becoming due in the next 12 months per the repayment schedule and has been disclosed under Loan third party CHF 9.00 Mn (Previous year CHF 60.7 Mn). The repayment of the said loan is due on 14th May 2016.
13

Board of Directors and executive management shareholdings
As of 31 March members of the non-executive and executive boards held the following shares. No Wockhardt Bio AG
share options were held.

Ajay Sahni

Dr. Habil F.Khorakiwala

14

Shares

Member of the Board and managing
director

23'030

15'000

Member of the Board and Chairman

5'000'000

0

44'600'000
86%

44'600'000
95%

Significant shareholders
Wockhardt Ltd, Mumbai

15

Shares

Number of shares
Capital and vote share

Subsequent events
No significant events occurred between balance sheet date and May 20, 2016, the date when the financial statements
were signed off by the Board of Directors for publication.
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